
 

Forest Health Advisory Committee Agenda – December 2023 | Page 1 of 2 

WASHINGTON DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 

FOREST HEALTH ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

Quarterly Committee Meeting 
Tuesday, December 19, 2023 

9:00 am to 12:00 pm 

Hybrid meeting 

 

In person at Natural Resources Building, 1111 Washington St. SE, Olympia, WA 98504, Room 172 

 

Remote via Microsoft Teams 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 

Click here to join the meeting 

Meeting ID: 294 924 831 29  

Passcode: WBv7St 

Download Teams | Join on the web 

Or call in (audio only) 
+1 564-999-2000,,120245173#   United States, Olympia 

Phone Conference ID: 120 245 173# 

 

 

Meeting Agenda 
All times are estimates to assist in scheduling and may be changed subject to the business of the day and at the Staff-

Chair’s discretion. The meetings will be recorded.  

 

Public Comment: To participate in public comment please RSVP to Lori.Reynaud@dnr.wa.gov no later than 5:00 pm 

on Monday, December 18th. Public comment shall be limited to 5 minutes per person – time may be shortened if 

needed to accommodate all interested parties. 

 

TIME BUSINESS MATERIALS 

9:00 AM Call to Order & Roll-call – Trevor McConchie, Staff Meeting Chair   

9:15 AM Approval of Quarterly Meeting Summary 

Action Item: Consider approval of September 19, 2023 meeting 

summary 

 

September 19, 2023 

Summary 

 

9:20 AM Forest Resilience Division Update – Jen Watkins, Division Manager  

9:30 AM State Forester George Geissler Update and Discussion on timely 

topics with committee, including Q&A and feedback  
 

10:00 AM Presentations:  Keeping Forests as Forests 

- Csenka Favorina-Csorba, DNR:  DNR conversion risk 

assessment 

- Mark Reed, DNR:  Washington Forest Legacy 

Proposals – Round 1 and 2 

Forest Legacy Round 1 

proposals 

10:30 AM BREAK – 10 minutes  

10:40 AM Public Comment   

10:55AM Roundtable:  Committee member updates and information sharing on 

items related to forest health and resilience in Washington 
 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/ap/t-59584e83/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fteams.microsoft.com%2Fl%2Fmeetup-join%2F19%253ameeting_Mzk5OWZkOGUtNjM5OC00MjNhLWIzYzctNTI0Yjc3Njk5NDk2%2540thread.v2%2F0%3Fcontext%3D%257b%2522Tid%2522%253a%252211d0e217-264e-400a-8ba0-57dcc127d72d%2522%252c%2522Oid%2522%253a%2522fe9b0be2-64ab-4e7e-bd9a-0a6e5db5aaa5%2522%257d&data=05%7C01%7CJennifer.Watkins%40dnr.wa.gov%7C580ade65c3944e1e315208dbc9b7c846%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638325563401130848%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=A2EHGTLvg0QS3M%2Fck8007mRF5NhQPU8lM7vU3Df2xFQ%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.microsoft.com%2Fen-us%2Fmicrosoft-teams%2Fdownload-app&data=05%7C01%7CJennifer.Watkins%40dnr.wa.gov%7C580ade65c3944e1e315208dbc9b7c846%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638325563401130848%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=cXEzaNbGIPBzJrGn6AyQEoz9RZw2L7W5ZRzG3Oc2WB4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.microsoft.com%2Fmicrosoft-teams%2Fjoin-a-meeting&data=05%7C01%7CJennifer.Watkins%40dnr.wa.gov%7C580ade65c3944e1e315208dbc9b7c846%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638325563401130848%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=QkCCw3z9QeLr43%2BM%2BimQ68DdI26f0%2Fyrga8kxIH%2FKVc%3D&reserved=0
tel:+15649992000,,120245173# 
mailto:Lori.Reynaud@dnr.wa.gov


 

Forest Health Advisory Committee Agenda – December 2023 | Page 2 of 2 

11:10 AM Action Item:  Motion to approve committee operations including 

committee nominations, appointments, and Chair election outside 

Charter timeline for the first quarter of 2024. 

Revised 11.2023 

committee charter 

11:15 AM Staff and Subcommittee Reports 

• Program Updates:  Strategic Science & Planning Team – 

progress reporting 

- 20-Year Forest Health Strategic Plan Treatment 

Tracking Update as of 10/31/2023  

- 2023 Forest Action Plan statewide implementation 

highlights  

• Forest Health Advisory Committee Monitoring Subgroup  

• Forest Health Advisory Committee Western Washington 

Subgroup  

Active tasking memos 

 

October 31, 2023 

treatment tracking memo 

for 20-Year Forest Health 

Strategic Plan 

11:45 AM 2024 Forest Health Advisory Committee Work plan:  Review of 

meeting 2024 meeting schedule (February 20th, June 18th, September 

10th, and December 10th), and committee input on priority topics and 

issues for committee work plan. 

Template for our annual 

work plan (from charter) 

12:00 PM Official meeting conclusion   

 



DRAFT FHAC Meeting Summary – September 2023 | 1 

WASHINGTON DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 

FOREST HEALTH ADVISORY COMMITTEE  Tuesday, September 19, 2023 (9:00AM – 1:00PM) 

 

DRAFT MEETING SUMMARY 
APPROVED [PENDING] 

Attendees  
Zach St. Amand (Parks, Alt.) 

Josh Anderson (Vaagen Brothers) 

Kevin Arneson (Boise Cascade)  

Darcy Batura (TNC)  

Jerry Bonagofsky (WCLA) 

Matt Comisky (AFRC)  

Chad Davis (USFS)  

Shana Joy (SCC)  

Cynthia Wilkerson (WDFW, Alt.)  

Tiana Luke (TWS)  

Jay McLauglin (SGPC)  

Elaine O’Neil (WFFA)  

Janene Ritchie (Pinchot Partners) 

Travis Dutton (WAC) 

Doug Hooks (WFPA)  

Dave Werntz (CNW) 

Trevor McConchie (DNR  Staff-

Chair)

 

Guests and Other Attendees Present: Jen Watkins, Terra Rentz, Alex Smith, Tony Craven, Nick Kunz, 

Sam Steinshouer, Andy Tate, Michael Norris, Kate Williams, Derek Churchill, Nick Kunz, Tim Walls, 

Brandon Austin, Deidre Hayward, Tony Craven, Ryan Sanchey, Brian Considine, Will Rubin, Jacob 

Delbridge 

 

FHAC Motions and Action 

Motion 1 MOTION by Luke. (Second by Bartura) TO APPROVE the May 16, 2023 Forest Health 

Advisory Committee Meeting Summary. MOTION PASSED 

 

Motion 2 MOTION by Wilkerson (Second by Luke) TO APPROVE the Forest Health Advisory 

Committee Charter as AMENDED by the Committee through two amendments on September 

19, 2023. MOTION PASSED 

- Amendment 1 to add section to meetings and guidelines that specifies that the 

committee will strive to host periodic meetings that are field based to encourage 

relationship learning, building, and innovation.   

- Amendment 2 to add a bullet under meeting and guidelines under B - operating 

guidelines - that state committee meetings will include presentations from partner 

agencies and organizations. Content will be determined by expressed interest by 

committee members that request or offer relevant presentations.  Janene Ritchie 

seconded the motion, and it was approved unanimously. 

 

Meeting Summary 

Welcome and Introductions 

Committee Meeting Chair, Trevor McConchie, opened the meeting by welcoming attendees, addressing a 

change in our approach to staffing the meetings in complement to the proposed charter revision, and 

underscoring the importance of this committee and our agency commitment to it. 

 

Terra Rentz notified the committee that she will be leaving her position with DNR to join the Nature 

Conservancy as their new Western Dry Forest and Fire Program Director.  Trevor also recognized Terra 

Rentz and all the work she contributed to this committee and forest health in Washington in her time with 

DNR.   

 

Meeting Minutes Approval 

The committee reviewed the May meeting minutes.  

 



DRAFT FHAC Meeting Summary – September 2023 | 2 

Tiana Luke moved to approve the May minutes and Darcy Batura seconded the motion. There were no 

objections to the motion. Motion passes. 

 

Forest Resilience Division Update 

Jen Watkins, Forest Resilience Division Manager, updated the group that the agency’s spending plans for 

the 2023-2025 biennium have been finalized and programs are already operating within it. The Forest 

Resilience Division has completed a lot of the program expansion as directed by legislation last biennium, 

and is conducting work statewide across 10 programs.  They agency integrated the work of the Joint 

Advisory Committee HB 1168 workgroup into our spending plans, aiming to follow the committee 

recommendations for funding to pass-through programs up to the spending allocation and authority from 

the legislature.  Our ability to fully implement the recommendations will depend upon the outcome of the 

2024 legislative session and the legislature’s willingness to fully fund HB 1168, which we’ll discuss later. 

 

Following all of this growth and change, our Division is focusing time this biennium on letting the glue 

dry and getting good at what we do, communicating the clear deliverables of our programs, and 

understanding how we leverage each other not only across our programs but with external partners and 

across the agency.  

 

A few specific program items included: 

 On October 2, 2023 a historic $7 million grant program will open a Request for Applications to 

support urban and community forestry across Washington.  This is made possible with support 

from both federal and state legislative funding through our Urban and Community Forestry 

Program. 

 Our Strategic Science and Planning Team has been piloting efforts to monitor wildfire 

interactions with fuels reduction and forest health treatments this season, with specific 

opportunities that emerged in Northeast Washington with the recent wildfires.  Thinking about 

those treatments, learning from how the fires and fire staff interacted with them, and exploring 

the lessons learned and stories we can tell is important. 

 In 2023 our Prescribed Fire Program completed a barriers assessment that was done with 

statewide prescribed fire community of practice that we have.  We’d like to talk with this 

committee as we also explore next steps internally on what we do to address this policy, fiscal, 

and operational issues to help us utilize this tool at scale. 

 Trevor McConchie with our Federal Lands Program will be representing Washington State on a 

subgroup established to support the US Forest Service’s new Federal Advisory Committee 

focused on the NW Forest Plan. 

 

Deputy Supervisor Update 

Alex Smith, Deputy Supervisor for Forest Resilience, Forest Regulation and Aquatics Resources 

reinforced that the first year after 1168 passed we just spent time hunkering down to grow these programs 

exponentially. Several teams in DNR including Forest Resilience program team expanded with 

astronomical growth, it was a lot of work to put these programs in place, creating the programs and hiring 

of staff support for those programs.  Now we are in a good place to do the work and leverage each other. 

 

Alex announced that Katie is now here Deputy Supervisor, bringing additional capacity to her executive 

team and our work.  Alex also shared that she recently joined a field tour with our Post-Fire Recovery 

staff in the Methow Valley with the Tribes, NGO, DFW, and US Forest Service partners to tour projects 

and landscapes impacted by fire. The tour reinforced that the work we do on the front end for Forest 

Resilience really does help with resilience from wildfires. We are continuing to evolve on how we show 

up for small forest landowners.   On prescribed fire, Alex noted that she’d like the barrier assessment that 



DRAFT FHAC Meeting Summary – September 2023 | 3 

was already mentioned brought to this group and that DNR is going to look for input as we explore any 

potential opportunities to bring to the legislature to address barriers in the 2025 session.   

 

Public Comment on FHAC Action Items 

No public comments. 

 

It was noted that we should clearly indicate the opportunity for public comment not only in the posted 

agenda, but in the email provided to the FHAC and email list prior to the meeting.  DNR committed to 

explore improvements to the public comment notifications, and having a sign-in sheet available for public 

comment as we have hybrid meetings with in-options. 

 

Charter Revision Update: Content review and process 

Trevor introduced the requested action item in front of the committee today to provide feedback and 

consider approval of the revised charter for the committee.  Jen Watkins reviewed the feedback received 

from committee members since the May 2023 meeting, in both grammatical edits and content.  Alex 

Smith confirmed that this committee’s charter revision is part of a broader agency effort led by our 

Boards and Commissions and Executive staff to ensure that all of our agency’s committees are complying 

with the HEAL Act. 

 

Committee members requested and the Chair approved a 10 minute break to review the latest charter 

document prior to taking action.  Upon return, the Committee confirmed that following Roberts Rules of 

once a motion is made to accept the charter as is and the discussion of the charter is open motions can be 

made to amend the existing document prior to any action to approve. 

 

Cynthia Wilkerson made a motion to approve the Charter, and Tiana Luke seconded. 

 

Darcy Batura made a motion for a first amendment to add section to meetings and guidelines that 

specifies that the committee will strive to host periodic meetings that are field based to encourage 

relationship learning, building, and innovation.  The motion was seconded and approved unanimously. 

 

Cynthia Wilkerson made a motion for a second amendment to add a bullet under meeting and guidelines 

under B - operating guidelines - that state committee meetings will include presentations from partner 

agencies and organizations. Content will be determined by expressed interest by committee members that 

request or offer relevant presentations.  Janene Ritchie seconded the motion, and it was approved 

unanimously. 

 

The committee discussed that during the discussion of the committee work plan later today, we can begin 

to identify topics and external presenters we’d like to have at our meetings in 2024 and work with the 

future co-chairs prior to meetings to build agenda.  Additional feedback was that the charter should be 

revised with the committee every two years, and DNR staff said that we could integrate that along with 

other technical edits to the charter with no motion needed. 

 

The Chair called a vote on the original motion to adopt the charter as amended by the committee, and it 

was approved. 

 

Alex will be taking the amended and approved Charter to the Commissioner of Public Lands for final 

review and signature in the month ahead.  Once executed we will post online and send out to the 

Committee, and begin accepting the applications for committee members to be appointed by our first 

meeting in 2024. It was noted that we may be off schedule for this first year from the ongoing routine of 

nominations due to the timeline of the revised charter execution and application period.  If applications 



DRAFT FHAC Meeting Summary – September 2023 | 4 

are in by December meeting, we could potentially accept nominations for Chair before the December 

meeting.   

 

Staff and Subcommittee Reports 

Monitoring Subcommittee:  Derek Churchill shared that Jessica Walston is our monitoring coordinator for 

treatment and project area level, and she has taken over for Andrew Spaeth in facilitating the Monitoring 

Subcommittee. She runs quarterly meetings as well as potentially a field trip. Monitoring projects that are 

underway include the Trail Project and Trout Lake Project on the Colville National Forest, Trout Lake 

Project on the Colville, Squilchuck State Parks, Tillicum on the Okanogan-Wenatchee, and work with 

Mount Adams Resource Stewards in the South Cascades. The subcommittee is also providing feedback to 

improve DNR’s treatment tracking in eastern WA include a more detailed set of treatment categories to 

report out and creating a process to show when treatment of acres is complete. Annie Smith with DNR 

just released new change detection data that we are working to also integrate with treatment tracking 

reporting. 

 

Western Washington Subcommittee:  Matt Comisky reported that the group has had 3 meetings working 

our problem statement, identifying our audience, mapping out the issues. Lots of work to do before final 

recommendations in a formal report.  Last group meeting had a presentation by Derek Churchill on a pilot 

assessment to landscape evaluations in western WA which was tested out in Snohomish County and a 

landscape on the Gifford Pinchot National Forest.   

 

Federal Lands Program Update:  John Perry, Federal Lands Planning Program Manager shared about the 

new program that was established by HB 1168.  The team is building capacity to complement and 

coordinate with environmental planning through NEPA with federal agencies on their lands. We brought 

on wildlife biologist, archaeologist and sharing a position with Geology for a geologist. Currently the 

program is looking to support NEPA statewide in coordination with individual national forests. Work 

ranges in complexity from an on-ground surveys to contract administration all the way up to overseeing 

an environmental analysis.  

 

2024 Legislative Session – Information Sharing and Coordination Around Forest Health Topics and 

Priorities 

 

Brian Considine, DNR’s Legislative Director, presented to the Committee on the agency’s current 

legislative priorities for the 2024 session for supplemental operating and capital support.  Details covered 

are included within the September 13, 2023 submission to OFM included with the post-meeting packet. 

 

Terra Rentz spoke to the specific request to the legislative addressing fully funding the Wildfire Response, 

Forest Restoration, and Community Resilience Account established by HB 1168.  The request seeks to 

maintain the Legislature’s current biennial investments (202123 BN) to improve forest health, and 

increase effectiveness in wildfire prevention and protection as formalized under 2SHB 1168 (RCW 

76.04.511), in which the legislative intent committed “to provide $125,000,000 per biennium over the 

next four biennia, for a total of $500,000,000”, which are deposited via fund transfer into the Wildfire 

Response, Forest Restoration and Community Resilience Account (hereafter the Account or 25P). The 

Legislature appropriated $87,107,000 Wildfire Response, Forest Restoration & Community Resilience 

(25P) to the Department of Natural Resources in Fiscal Year 2023. At the close of the 2021-2023 

biennium, DNR had expended $80,323,835 (92.2%) of this historic appropriation – even while faced with 

launching new programming, supply chain challenges, workforce limitations, impacts of the COVID19 

pandemic, and natural environmental variability. The Department has effectively used state dollars to 

implement the 20Year Plan, 10Year Plan, and FAP, demonstrating a clear need for the full $125M in 

appropriation authority as intended in SHB 1168. This request would restore the 25P account to full 



DRAFT FHAC Meeting Summary – September 2023 | 5 

funding levels and provide appropriation authority to spend the funds. Specifically, this proposal supports 

the following actions: 

 $1.885 million increase in DNR’s spending authority for 25P (from $118.115 million to $120 

million) 

 $23.4 million increase in the transfer of funds into 25P (from $89.806 to $120 million 

 

Shana Joy from the Washington Conservation Commission shared they aren’t pursuing any agency 

requested legislation this round but do have 3 supplemental budget requests including staffing and 

operation for the commission itself, including $600,000 for 6 positions to help deliver on capital funds 

that are already in hand.  Conservation Technical Assistance funding to support the 45 conservation 

districts on the ground that are our boots on the ground to deliver programs. We were very close to having 

that appropriation the last legislative session so we’re coming back to see if we can’t finish that job and 

get those funds for the conservation districts this time around.  Finally, capital funding for the Regional 

Conservation Partnership program by NRCS, we provide state matching funds to conservation districts 

that are leading or implementing our CPTs and there are 7 ongoing right now in the state and 11 new 

applications that went in the last solicitation. This supplemental request for our CPT is for 3 million in 

capital funds to support those RCPPs.  

 

Zach St. Amand with Washington State Parks confirmed they do not have any supplemental forest health 

legislative priorities for this coming session, they are busy working on their existing biennial plan. 

 

Cynthia Wilkerson with WDFW shared on 3 capital requests and 9 operating budget requests including 

that the enacted 2023-2025 budget reduced the agency’s forest health and fuel reduction funding from $6 

million to $4 million and moved the funding from the capital budget to the Forest Resiliency Account. 

This reduction presents a threat to the sustainability and momentum of the Department’s forest 

health program. Restoring adequate funding is critical to WDFW’s implementation of forest health and 

resilience, as outlined in the “All Hands, All Lands” strategy. Funding reductions jeopardize the 20-year 

treatment goals that keep communities safe, enhance biodiversity, maintain public working lands’ 

contributions to local economies, and improve public lands’ resilience to climate change. This $2 million 

request will help implement forest health treatments on more acres, cover increased fuel and 

infrastructure costs, cover the costs of more complex projects, and help ensure equipment safety.  Full 

request is included in the post-meeting packet materials.  She also noted the agency has a legislation 

request related to being able to allow for opportunities to work with nonprofits and engage volunteers. 

 

Federal Partner Updates 

Chad Davis & Dan Shively with US Forest Service Region 6 shared updates with the committee, standing 

in for Deputy Regional Forester Robert Sanchez who could not join the meeting. 

 

Dan Shively, the Natural Resources Director for Region 6 shared the breath of issue that are in his teams 

portfolio including Botany, Air Quality, Fisheries, Wildlife, Wildlife Ecology, Threatened, Endangered & 

Sensitive Species Management, Soil Science, Hydrology & Watershed, Water Rights, Water uses, Water 

quality, all forest products and veg management including timber program. Timber sale, prep, Contracting 

and Silviculture. He noted that they’ve newly added a Post Disturbance Recovery team after the large 

devastating fires that swept our region. Dan then noted the important leadership changes and staff changes 

across Region 6 and on national forests including a current acting Regional Forester, three new Deputy 

Regional Foresters, and significant changes in most of Washington’s national forests.  He identified that 

Washington has 2 priority landscapes identified for implementation of the agencies Wildfire Crisis 

Strategy, in Central WA and NE WA.  In the first fiscal year over $20 million dollars have gone into 

hazardous fuels reduction in the Central WA Initiative resulting in 24,000 acres of hazardous fuels 

reduction work.  A lot of that investment funding went towards planning and a lot of that was 

accomplished with the help of DNR and many other partners including Tribal partners. Right now, in 



DRAFT FHAC Meeting Summary – September 2023 | 6 

fiscal year 23 as we work toward closing that out in the remaining weeks of our federal fiscal year, we 

have almost doubled that investment.  Hiring has been a challenge agency-wide and working with other 

state, tribal governments and other NGO partners has been key to our success.  

In Northeast WA, this year we put a modest investment into that landscape of 3.5 million dollars, and 

we’re expecting around 22,000 acres of hazardous fuels accomplishment work in that landscape. 

Highlights are we are continuing to meet with tribes, tribal governments, county commissioners, our key 

partners and state agencies as well as the key leadership with the Northeast WA force coalition while 

recent litigation is impacting outcomes. 

 

Funds from the bipartisan infrastructure law and the inflation reduction act have helped to expand the 

funding for national forest system lands and waters outside the landscapes discussed.  Example is around 

$360,000 toward priority area invasive species treatments on the Mount Baker Snoqualmie National 

Forest, weed treatments and rock source inspections of the Olympic National Forest as well as other 

broad programs sweeping a multitude of forests including things as invasive plant species control in 

support of TNE plant recovery as well as aquatic invasive species monitoring, prevention, and public 

outreach. Additionally, under Bill and IRA the region submitted a 5-million-dollar request to the WA 

office for Aquatic Restoration in the Upper Wind River Basin that’s part of the Gifford Pinchot National 

Forest that would cover fiscal years 24, 25 & 26. We are waiting for announcement whether we were 

selected as one of those priority investments at a national level.  He also shared that the national forest has 

put a strong and renewed emphasis into our active Forest Management program across all of WA working 

toward outcomes for healthy resilient landscapes.  

 

Chad Davis, Direct of State, Private, and Tribal Forestry shared that the way much of their funding hits 

the ground is with grants to the state or other partners.  Recent BIL and IRA funding has provided 

opportunities to directly support work with tribes.  Also to date $80 million dollars of federal funds have 

gone from the Forest Service into the state of WA, about a quarter of that has went into DNR programs 

and about three quarters directly to other partners.  Programs such as Community Wildfire Defense 

Grants, Urban and Community Forestry Grants, and Landscape Scale Restoration grants are included in 

these numbers.  The state’s Forest Action Plan is really important as a foundation for where funds are 

directed. 

 

Dan closed by sharing that Region 6 has established a federal advisory committee to provide input on the 

NW Forest Plan, and they have been asked to conclude their work by the end of next calendar year.  

Discussion noted importance of this effort to bring back to this committee for updates, and current 

priorities for Washington under the existing Northwest Forest Plan such as the Late Successional Reserve 

Assessment update on the Okanogan-Wenatchee National Forest underway. 

 

Initiating Development of the 2024 Forest Health Advisory Committee Annual plan 

Trevor McConchie and Jen Watkins introduced the discussion to begin developing the 2024 annual 

workplan, utilizing the template from our draft charter and with a goal that by the end of this December, 

the Committee adopts an annual plan for the 2024 calendar year. 

 

The following questions were posed for discussion and input from committee members: 

 What topics and presenters do you want included in our quarterly meeting agendas for our 

collective learning, information sharing, and work in the year ahead? 

 What specific timely or ongoing work do you feel may warrant a committee work group? 

 What geographies or considerations would you like included as we think of field meetings and 

optional tours? 

 

The official meeting concluded at 12pm, and a work session for committee members to provide input on 

these questions continued until 1pm. 



���������	

�
���������
���������������������	�����������������
��
���
���������������������� !"#$%�&#'()*�+,-��."!/#)%012�3145�67892�:;<92�:;=8>?;@2AB%%B%($�C!DE%*��F($GBE'%!EHIJKLJM�NLOPQ6RHR�STSU�HV<2>W�:29;?X�Y<V9<;5�H4=87=9 Z[\]̂TT]TTTHR�STSU�JV=_H282<;1�0V>W�Ò ;<2 Z\]aTT]TTTHR�STSU�Y<Vb2?W�0V>W> ZS[]TTT]TTTHR�STSU�Y<Vb2?W�c?<2> d]aTTHV<2>W�:29;?X�H4=87=9�PV�K;W2 ZTPVW;1�Y<Vb2?W�0V>W> ZS[]TTT]TTTPVW;1�Y<Vb2?W�c?<2> d]aTTP<;?W�J;52 O7e2�f;?g P<;?W�0V>W H:Y�H4=87=9 JV=_H28�0V>W�Ò ;<2 OW;W4>hij�kilm�nopqj rstuu vwxsuuusuuu vxyszuusuuu vystuusuuu {|}~��wuw�M3J36c:�K3O06LYPLQJhlimo�}�o�q�wu��j}|���~�����j|�}�o��s���j�rstuu�}�|j�hij�kilm�nopqj��}|qj��}�p��}�j����|��j�����o��}��kk������k�}��lo�o�o���������{j�����~��}�l|}i�nj��l|�j���{�n������j��mj��}|���~���j��j}�}�}��h�mml�o�����|j�����������j������j�i}���mo��o�q��oj�j�o��}���}o���~��|��j��jp�i}�p������j��|��j���o��}�~�|j����|opqj���}��j��}��j������j��o�o���}�p�}�~�|j����l~~j|���}���|��j����������~|�m��oip~o|j�������oii��j�l|j��oipio~j�m��jmj���}�|������j���}�j�}�p������j�}p�}�j�����}��q}���j�}���jj��}�o��}i���|j��������p|�����o~j|�~�|j���s�o��ilpo�q��ip�q|����s��}�j��jj��|j���|jp�~�|�q|j}�j|��oip~o|j�|j�oioj�������o���i��q�i}��o�q�����mji��}�p�}�zstuu�~���oq��|opqjio�j�~�|�~i�|}�}�p�~}l�}����moq|}�j�����j��mo�|��iom}�j�s���j��|��j���o��|j}�j���iom}�j�|j�oioj��j��o��o����j��}�om}�no�j|��}�o�s���j���}�j ��m�����iom}�j��li�j|}�ij��}�j|��jp�����o��}i����}�o�}��~�|�j�p}�qj|jp�¡|}����i~�}�p���|j}�j�jp���jji�j}p�}�p��lii��|�l������j|i���o�q�q|��o�q��������o��o����j���j�o����l��}o��������l�p�¡|jj��}���}�o��}i�¢j|o�}qj��|j}s���j��|��j���o��}��|o���~|�m���l�o�q��|�|j��|��pj�ji��mj����plj����pjm}�p�~|�m��j}��ij�£u�moij��}�}���{j�ji��mj�����lip��i����~jpj|}i��oip~o|j�h|o�o����|}�jq��|j���|}�o��s��i��j�o����u�moij���~��j}|�|�l�p��|}oi�s�}�p�pjq|}pj��}�o�}�Y6Q¤30P�H3cPI63OL5@V<W;=Wkh�����h��k�k�����¥�����kn¦���|j��|���l��iojp�xx£�po|j�����������§o��o�}��h�l�����o���vxz�w�moiio���o���}qj��o��wuwx����j��|��j����}��v£�̈̈ ��o��mj|��}��}�ij��om�j|��wuwz��}il}�o�����nj���|}�o���}�p�}��o�j�~�|j���m}�}qjmj�������|o�l�jp�xr�����|}����~�|�vyztsuuu��il��xx�~lii��omj������o��wuww�©���ª��������k���nk�������¡k�k��¦���j��|��j����}���jj����o|p��}|����j|�o~ojp������j���|j�����j�}|p��o��h�l��oi��o��j�wuxt������}��jp���j�i}�j����|j�}lpo��o���j���wuwz����j��|��j|���o��}i���m}�}qjp�o��}���|p}��j��o���}�~jpj|}i�¢}�o�}��h���j|�}�o����i}���wuuu��~�|���|j}�j�jp���j�oj������j|�}�o���©��
«¬����������
��
����®�����������¬��̄°������±²����¬���³�������́�
����¬���µ¶�«³·®



���������	


�������������������������������������� ������������������������������������	���� �!�����"��������������������� ���� �#�� �$"%&'(�)**(*�+,�+-(�)*.)'(&+�/()&)0)1�2,334&5+1�6,7(8+9�,0&(*�:1�;<�=(>+?�,@�A)+47)B�C(8,47'(8�D=ACE9�+-(�F7,.('+�05BB�:(�',BB):,7)+5G(B1�3)&)H(*�4&*(7�5+8�',334&5+1I:)'J(*�6,7(8+�K)&)H(3(&+�FB)&�DLMNOE�@,7�(&-)&'5&H�0)+(7�84>>B19�(P>)&*5&H�7('7()+5,&9�3)5&+)5&5&H�@,7(8+719�)&*�',&8(7G5&H�-):5+)+?Q��R2%A%KS2�TRAR6S/U�V�CR2CR</S%AW�/7)5B8�)7(�+-(�:)'J:,&(�,@�+-(�7('7()+5,&�(',&,319�H5G(&�+-(�>,>4B)75+1�,@�-5J5&H�)&*�3,4&+)5&�:5J5&H?�/7)5B8�',&+75:4+(*�XLOY?ZK�+,�[5++5+)8�2,4&+1\8�(',&,31�5&�LMNZ9�5&'B4*5&H�X]OZ?OK�5&�8>(&*5&H�)&*�]9Y]M�.,:8�05+-�X̂Z?NK�5&�B):,7�5&',3(�DR2%A,7+-0(8+E?Q��/-(�F7,.('+\8�YM�35B(8�,@�34B+5I48(�+7)5B8�',&&('+�+,�YOM�35B(8�,@�7(H5,&)B�+7)5B89�5&'B4*5&H�+-(�;(8+�6,7J�/7)5B8�DO_�35B(8E9�U4&')*5)\8�+7)5B89�+-(�2,)B�K5&(�/7)5B�+-)+�',&&('+8�B,')B�+,0&8�D_?O�35B(8E9�)&*�+-(�F)B,48(�+,�2)8')*(�/7)5B�+-)+�',G(78�L̀]�,@�;<�)&*�(P+(&*8�+,�S*)-,�DL̂O�35B(8E?Q��67,3�LMLNILML]9�+-(�F7,.('+�-,8+(*�_�',334&5+1�(G(&+89�7)585&H�X]̂9MOM�@,7�B,')B�')48(8�)&*�)**5&H�X]M9̂MM�+,�+-(�B,')B�7('7()+5,&�(',&,31?�S&�LMLLILML]9�+-(�G,B4&+((7�B):,7�@,7�:45B*5&H�)&*�3)5&+)5&5&H�+7)5B8�58�G)B4(*�)+�X̂9]aZ�DC('7()+5,&�)&*�2,&8(7G)+5,&�%@@5'(�7)+(�,@�XLǸ-,47E?Q��/bCR</RAR=̀RA=<AcRCR=�UFR2SRUW�/-(�F7,.('+�58�-):5+)+�@,7�@(*(7)BB1�(&*)&H(7(*�D6RE�c7)1�;,B@?�/-(�/()&)0)1�>)'J�,@�c7)1�;,BG(8�48(�>,7+5,&8�,@�+-(�>7,>(7+1?�/-(�F7,.('+\8�',&&('+5,&�+,�)*.)'(&+�>7,+('+(*�B)&*8�@)'5B5+)+(8�+-(�>)'J\8�B)7H(�H(,H7)>-5'�*58>(78)B?Q��]?a�35B(8�,@�+-(�F7,.('+\8�'7((J8�)7(�-):5+)+�@,7�@(*(7)BB1�+-7()+(&(*�D6/E�U+((B-()*�)&*�6/�T4BB�/7,4+�)&*�*7)5&�+,�+-(�/()&)0)1�C5G(7�D;<�=(>+?�,@�658-�d�;5B*B5@(e�;=6;E?�/-(�/()&)0)1�C5G(7�58�,&(�,@�+-(�3)5&�8)B3,&I>7,*4'5&H�+75:4+)75(8�,@�+-(�f)J53)�C5G(7�05+-�6/�2-5&,,J�8)B3,&�+,,?Q��/-(�F7,.('+�',&+)5&8�)&�-58+,75'�&,7+-(7&�8>,++(*�,0B�D6/E�&(8+�85+(?�;5+-�N̂M�)'7(8�,@�,B*�H7,0+-�@,7(8+8�DNOMg�1()7�,B*�+7((8E�845+):B(�@,7�&,7+-(7&�8>,++(*�,0B�)&*�'477(&+�@,7(8+�3)&)H(3(&+�'7()+5&H�3,7(�B)+(�84''(885,&)B�@,7(8+89�+-(�F7,.('+�3)1�>7,G5*(�@4+47(�-):5+)+�)8�>,>4B)+5,&8�7(',G(7?Q��hASihR�6%CRU/�2%KKhAS/SRUW�/-(�F7,.('+�',&+)5&8�)�&,7+-I+,I8,4+-�3,G(3(&+�',775*,7�@,7�05B*B5@(9�)&*�)&�(BJ�)&*�34B(�*((7�05&+(7�)7()�)&*�35H7)+5,&�',775*,7�05+-5&�+-(�R)8+�UB,>(�2)8')*(8�K4B(�=((7�K)&)H(3(&+�j,&(�D;=6;E9�0-5'-�',&+)5&8�+-(�B)7H(8+�35H7)+,71�34B(�*((7�-(7*�05+-�Ya9MMM�)&53)B8?Q��K4B(�*((7�)&*�(BJ�)7(�>7(1�8>('5(8�@,7�c7)1�;,B@�D6/E�)&*�35H7)+(�+-7,4H-�+-(�F7,.('+?�/-(�F7,.('+�)BB,08�',&+5&4(*�',&&('+5G5+1�)'7,88�+-(�B)&*8')>(�)&*�-):5+)+8�@7,3�2B(�RB43�k)J(�B,0B)&*8�+,�+-(�)*.)'(&+�)&*�4>B)&*�>7,+('+(*�)7()8�D;=6;E?Q��;</RCUbR=�FC%/R2/S%AW�/-(�F7,.('+�5&'B4*(8�-()*0)+(78�,@�+-(�f)J53)�C5G(7�T)85&9�0-(7(�Y_Y9MMM�)'7(8�,@�5775H)+(*�'7,>B)&*�84>>,7+8�+-(�7(H5,&\8�XY?O�:5BB5,&�)H75'4B+47(�5&*48+71�)&*�3)J(8�5+�+-(�hU\�3,8+�>7,*4'+5G(�',4&+1�@,7�)>>B(89�35&+9�)&*�-,>8?Q��/-(�F7,.('+�-(B>8�>7,+('+�8&,0>)'J9�0)+(7�8+,7)H(9�)&*�H7,4&*0)+(7�7('-)7H(?�/-(�f)J53)�T)85&�7(B5(8�,&�8&,0>)'J�@,7�aOl�,@�5+8�0)+(7�84>>B1�@,7�)H75'4B+47(�)&*�6/�U+((B-()*9�T4BB�/7,4+9�)&*�2-5&,,J?�2B(�RB43�C5*H(\8�8-)*(*�&,7+-�8B,>(�>7,G5*(*�8&,0�8+,7)H(�+,�*(>+-8�,@�ZMINYO'3?Q��/-58�8-)*(*9�&,7+-I@)'5&H�8B,>(�(P+(&*8�8&,0�3(B+�:1�]M�*)18�4&+5B�35*̀B)+(I<>75B�5&8+()*�,@�+-(�)G(7)H(�,@�a�*)18?�U&,0�*7)5&8�+,�+-(�/()&)0)1�C5G(7�+-(&�+-(�f)J53)�C5G(79�+-48�84>>B15&H�',B*9�'B()7�0)+(7�0-(&�.4G(&5B(�2-5&,,J�,4+35H7)+(9�)**7(885&H�)�J(1�B535+5&H�@)'+,7�@,7�7(',G(71?Q��/CST<kW�/-(�F7,.('+�58�05+-5&�+-(�'(*(*�B)&*8�,@�+-(�T)&*8�,@�+-(�f)J)3)�A)+5,&?�/-(�/75:(�84>>,7+8�+-(�F7,.('+\8�',&&('+5G5+1�8,�>(,>B(�')&�mB,,J�,4+�)&*�(&.,1�+-)+�)8�)�-4H(9�',&+5H4,48�>5('(�,@�,47�8+)+(9�,@�,47�B)&*9�)&*�,@�,47�&)+47)B�0,7B*?m�U+)+(�,0&(78-5>�H4)7)&+((8�>(73)&(&+�)''(88?Q��/-(�f)J)3)�A)+5,&�58�)&�)'+5G(�3(3:(7�,@�+-(�/)>)8-�U48+)5&):B(�6,7(8+�2,BB):,7)+5G(9�)�>)7+&(78-5>�05+-�/-(�A)+47(�2,&8(7G)&'1�D/A2E9�hU�6,7(8+�U(7G5'(9�;=6;9�)&*�=AC9�+-)+�-)G(�)&*�05BB�',&+5&4(�+,�5&'7()8(�+-(�F7,.('+\8�@,7(8+�-()B+-�05+-�+-5&&5&H�)&*�>7(8'75:(*�:47&8?Q��

n��������o��p�����������������������������������o��������������������������q�r������sq�nt
u



���������	


�������������������������������������� ������������������������������������	�� ���!�� ��"������������������������ ���#����$"%&'()*�+**,--.�/01�%23415678�9:�;<=18�3>�8?;;12�@AB�C:�;<=18�3>�D<A612�62@<=8�D<==�86@E�F?G=<5=E�@55188<G=1�>32�E1@2H23?AB�21521@6<3AI�)68�JK�;<=18�>32�0<L<AMN�G<L<AMN�03281G@5L�2<B<AMN�@AB�52388H53?A62E�8L<<AM�@21�52?5<@=�>32�601�/3DA8�63�/1@A@D@E�O@8612�%=@A�63�53AA156�218<B1A68�63�F?G=<5�=@AB8IP��-*,Q)*.�/01�%234156�<8�F@26�3>�601�O3?A6@<A8�63�-3?AB�R211AD@E�Q@6<3A@=�S12<6@M1�+21@�TQS+UN�@A�153=3M<5@==E�B<V1281�5322<B32�8621650<AM�CKK�;<=18�>23;�-1@66=1�63�,==1A8G?2MN�D0121�B2@;@6<5�D@612D@E8N�2?MM1B�;3?A6@<A8N�@AB�B<V1281�>321868�0@V1�>32;1B�601�21M<3A78�5?=6?2@=�012<6@M1�>32�;<==1AA<@IP��W<60<A�601�QS+N�601�%234156�<8�@�V12B@A6�G@5LB23F�>32�601�)HXK�Q@6<3A@=�-51A<5�'ED@EN�D0<50�D@8�62@V1=1B�GE�YYNXKZ�V10<5=18�B@<=E�<A�9K99�TW+�[1F6I�3>�/2@A8F326@6<3AN�W-[\/UIP��*()O+/,�],-)(),Q*,.�/01�%234156�G?<=B8�21M<3A@=�218<=<1A51�@8�@�5=<;@61�>=3D�5322<B32�1A0@A5<AM�21M<3A@=�53AA156<V<6E�@AB�1A@G=<AM�8F15<18�63�;<M2@61�G16D11A�B<>>121A6�;3?A6@<A�1=1V@6<3A8�63�><AB�;321�;3B12@61�@AB�8?<6@G=1�;<523H5=<;@618IP��̂_̀abcadae(+*f�\g�%]\/,*/)\Q.�/01�%234156�<8�h3A1B�*3;;125<@=�g32186�T*gUN�D0<50�F12;<68�iKH@521�218<B1A6<@=�=368I�+�9K9C�>1@8<G<=<6E�86?BE�>3?AB�60@6�601�>=@6N�C9H;<=1�=3AM�8?;;<6�53?=B�G1�8?GB<V<B1B�<A63�jKHiK�0<M0�;@2L16�V@=?1�=368�?AB12�5?221A6�h3A<AMI�)6�<8�A36�F2361561B�GE�1@81;1A68�32�53V1A@A68IP��+[k+*,Q/�(+Q[�&-,.�Q1@2GE�]38=EA�T9K9K�F3FI�X:KUN�]3A@=B�T9K9K�F3FI�JYXUN�@AB�*=1�,=?;�T9K9K�F3FI�jNJZ:U�>@51�F2188?21�>32�218<B1A6<@=�32�218326�B1V1=3F;1A68�>23;�601�-1@66=1H/@53;@H'1==1V?1�O1623�+21@�T9K99�F3FI�JIC�;<==<3AUN�601�&-7�C:60�=@2M186�;1623�@21@N�iY�;<=18�32�@�j:H;<A?61�B2<V1�@D@EIP��/01�-1@66=1�03?8<AM�;@2L16�0@8�=<;<61B�<AV1A632E�@AB�0<M0�53;F16<6<3AI�/01�;1B<@A�03;1�F2<51�<8�liCKNKKK�@AB�;386�2151<V1�J�3>>128�@AB�81==�D<60<A�CK�B@E8I�W<60�@�;1B<@A�03?8103=B�<A53;1�3>�lCKCNj9C�T9K9CUN�83;1�5@A�@>>32B�8153AB�03;18�D0<=1�360128�811L�@>>32B@G<=<6E�3?68<B1�601�;1623�@21@IP��f<66<6@8�*3?A6E78�F3F?=@6<3A�M21D�GE�C:m�8<A51�9KCK�63�JjN9KK�T9K99n�&-�*1A8?8UI�)6�@FF23V1B�JKX�F12;<68�>32�A1D�03?818�<A�9K99I�/01�M23D60�2@61�3?68<B1�?2G@A�M23D60�G3?AB@2<18�<8�J9m�0<M012�60@A�D<60<A�601;I�[1V1=3F;1A68�5@612�63�21521@6<3AH;<AB1B�03;1G?E128�D<60�>321861B�=368�@AB�62@<=8IP��o<8<6@6<3A8�0<6�A1D�0<M08�B?2<AM�*\o)[�D<60�-1@66=178�21;361�D32L128�>=11<AM�601�5<6E�>32�=188�523DB1B�@AB�@;1A<6EH2<50�]38=EAI�+FF23p<;@61=E�J9m�3>�03?818�<A�601�53?A6E�@21�8153AB@2E�03;18�T*3?A6E�@8818832�803D8�3DA1278�F12;@A1A6�@BB2188�B<>>121B�>23;�8<6178�@BB2188UIP��CNZjK�F@251=8N�;386�D<60�F2<;@2E�32�8153AB@2E�03;18N�@21�D<60<A�KI:�;<=18�3>�<68�83?60D18612A�G32B12N�<A5=?B<AM�,B122@78�XJ�03;18�@AB�62@<=8N�%<A1=350�-?A78�YYX�03?818N�]38=EA�]<BM178�;?=6<H>@;<=E�G?<=B<AM8�@AB�Yi�03?818N�@AB�]q]�S1<M0687�JK�03?818IP��C�;<=1�@D@EN�601�-?A5@B<@�]18326�<8�@�F3F?=@2�E1@2H23?AB�3?6B332�21521@6<3A�B186<A@6<3AN�18F15<@==E�@8�@�8?AAEN�;<BHD<A612�185@F1�>32�-1@66=1�218<B1A68I�)68�ZNJKK�@5218�<A5=?B1�CN9KK�8153AB�32�21A6@=�03;18N�YKJ�=3BM1�233;8�32�53AB38N�62@<=8N�@AB�M3=>�53?2818I�)6�0@8�@FF23V@=�>32�JNZKK�?A<68�636@=IP��+')()/r�/\�[,o,(\%.�/01�%234156�0@8�@�23@B�A16D32L�@AB�851A<5�V<1D8�3>�O6I�]@<A<12�@AB�601�+=F<A1�(@L18�W<=B12A188I�W<60�@B4@51A6�03;18N�?6<=<6<18�@AB�23@B8�@G?6�601�%23F126EI�[18F<61�D@612�85@25<6E�<A�601�r@L<;@�'@8<AN�;386�3>�601�%234156�<8�1=<M<G=1�>32�218<B1A6<@=�D@612�5126<><5@618IP��(+Q[\WQ,]-�*)]*&O-/+Q*,.�/3�F23V<B1�80326H612;�F236156<3AN�=@AB3DA12�*1A62@=�*@85@B18�g32186�((*�T**g�((*U�@5s?<21B�601�%234156�<A�9KCJI�&AB12�@M211;1A6�D<60�**g�((*N�/Q*�0@8�3A=E�@�>1D�E1@28�63�62@A8>12�601�=@AB�<A63�F12;@A1A6�F236156<3AIP��**g�((*78�F21H@5s?<8<6<3A�@AB�/Q*78�;@A@M1;1A6�@21�61;F32@2EI�**g�((*�<8�@A�<A612<;�03=B12�53A623==1B�GE�1s?<6E�<AV186328�@AB�<8�?A=<L1=E�63�03=B�601�=@AB�>3==3D<AM�601�?F53;<AM�1pF<2E�3>�<68�@M211;1A6�D<60�/Q*N�83�601�%234156�;@E�G1�83=B�3A�601�3F1A�;@2L16�63�216?2A�<AV186;1A6�5@F<6@=IP��
t������������u�����v������	 ������������w��w���������x�������������y������wz�����v�{$|$v�{}$v�t|~|v�~�"$�



���������	


�������������������������������������� ������������������������������������	�� �!�"�� ��#���������������������!�� �!�$��!�%#&'()'*+,-./01230345�16/53.537�28479:�5;<�1=>?<@A�BC�DB=<@AEF�GD?G@<HA�A>�A;<�IJKLMNOG@=<�5<GHGPGF�.>QQRHBAF�S>=<CA�T5<GHGPGFUK�A;<�VB=CA�CAGA<O>PH<D�@>QQRHBAF�V>=<CAK�A;<�6>CEFH�W=XGH�S>=<CAK�GHD�A;<�W9S9�/YGH>ZGHO[<HGA@;<<�4GAB>HGE�S>=<CA�T/[4SU\�5;<�1=>?<@A�XRVV<=C�]=>A<@A<D�EGHDCK�]=>̂BD<C�;GXBAGA�GHD�PBEDEBV<�@>HH<@AB̂BAFK�GHD�;<E]C�]=<C<=̂<�PGA<=�_RGEBAF�GHD�_RGHABAF�PBA;BH�A;<�G̀YBQG�6B̂<=�XGCBH\a��
/5b36�1Wc2d.�c343Sd59:�5;<�1=>?<@A�BC�A;<�@REQBHGAB>H�>V�54.eC�f=<GA�[<CA<=H�.;<@Y<=X>G=DC�dHBABGAB̂<�A>�=<@>HH<@A�V=GZQ<HA<D�]=B̂GA<�ABQX<=�BH;>EDBHZC�G@=>CC�[8�GHD�0>HAGHG�A>�BQ]=>̂<�EGHDC@G]<OC@GE<�=<CA>=GAB>H\�dH�[8K�G�NJOF<G=�<VV>=A�XF�A;<�W9S9K�..S�22.K�GHD�54.�RCBHZ�2GHD�GHD�[GA<=�.>HC<=̂GAB>H�SRHDC�T2[.SU�BC�GDDBHZ�gJKJJJ�G@=<C�A>�A;<�/[4SK�=<@>HH<@ABHZ�NLJKJJJ�G@=<C�>V�]RXEB@�EGHDC\a��./4936h85d/4�d4d5d85dh3:�5;<�@>HZ=<CCB>HGEEF�GRA;>=Bi<D�̀GYBQG�cGCBH�dHA<Z=GA<D�1EGH�T̀cd1U�1;GC<�L�2GHDC�1EGH�HGQ<C�746eC�G@_RBCBAB>H�GHD�QGHGZ<Q<HA�>V�.E<�3ERQ�6BDZ<eC�;BZ;�<E<̂GAB>H�V>=<CAC�TA;BC�1=>?<@AU�GC�G�;BZ;�]=B>=BAF�V>=�PGA<=�CR]]EF�GHD�VBC;�]>]REGAB>HC\�dA�Q<<AC�̀cd1�]=BH@B]E<C�>V�BQ]=>̂BHZ�@=>CCO?R=BCDB@AB>HGE�EGHD�QGHGZ<Q<HAK�]RXEB@�G@@<CCK�GHD�PBEDEBV<�@>HH<@AB̂BAF\a��746eC�G@_RBCBAB>H�>V�A;<�GD?G@<HA�5<GHGPGF�A>�]=>A<@A�PGA<=�_RGEBAF�GHD�_RGHABAF�PGC�G�CBZHBVB@GHA�G@;B<̂<Q<HA�>V�1;GC<�N�>V�A;<�̀cd1\�8DDBHZ�A>�A;<�5<GHGPGFK�A;<�1=>?<@A�PBEE�CGV<ZRG=D�A;BC�CAGA<�GHD�V<D<=GE�BĤ<CAQ<HA�XF�XRVV<=BHZ�BA�V=>Q�<H@=>G@;BHZ�D<̂<E>]Q<HAC�A;GA�P>RED�>A;<=PBC<�@>Q]=>QBC<�BAC�PGA<=�=<C>R=@<C�X<H<VBACK�BH@ERDBHZ�CH>P]G@Y�CA>=GZ<�GHD�PGA<=�VBEA=GAB>H\a��[BA;�GD?G@<HA�]=>A<@A<D�EGHDC�GHD�PBHA<=BHZ�GHD�@>==BD>=�;GXBAGA�V>=�]=<F�C]<@B<CK�A;<�1=>?<@A�CR]]>=AC�[7S[eC�f=GF�[>EV�6<@>̂<=F�1EGH�TLJNNU�XF�GEE>PBHZ�f=GF�[>EV�TS3U�DBC]<=CGE�G@=>CC�E>HZ�DBCAGH@<CK�<C]<@BGEEF�V>=�P>Ê<C�C<G=@;BHZ�V>=�GH>A;<=�]G@Y�>=�E>H<�P>EV\�2>HZOA<=Q�̂BGXBEBAF�>V�[8eC�]>]REGAB>H�=<EB<C�>H�CR@;�EGHDC@G]<OC@GE<�@>HH<@AB̂BAF�V>=�Z<H<AB@�DB̂<=CBAF�GHD�Z<H<�VE>P\a��5;<�?>BHA�W9�SBC;�GHD�[BEDEBV<�9<=̂B@<K�4GAB>HGE�1G=Y�9<=̂B@<K�cR=<GR�>V�2GHD�0GHGZ<Q<HAK�GHD�[7S[�]EGH�V>=�XBZOZGQ<�;GXBAGAK�A;<�[8�8@AB>H�1EGH�TLJLJUK�EBCAC�A;<�3GCA�9E>]<�.GC@GD<C�0RE<�7<<=�j>H<�GC�A;<�;BZ;<CA�]=B>=BAF�X<@GRC<�>V�BAC�EG=Z<CA�;<=D\�[BA;�PBHA<=�=GHZ<�GHD�QBZ=GAB>H�@>==BD>=�BH�A;BC�i>H<K�A;<�1=>?<@A�VREVBEC�A;<�]=B>=BAF�G@AB>H�>V�G@_RBCBAB>H�A>�BQ]=>̂<�GHD�]=<C<=̂<�;GXBAGA\a��5;<�1=>?<@A�@>HAGBHC�3GCA�.GC@GD<C�/GYO1>HD<=>CG�1BH<�S>=<CAK�G�9AGA<�[BEDEBV<�8@AB>H�1EGH�TLJNIU�]=B>=BAF�;GXBAGA�V>=�@>HC<=̂GAB>H�P;<H�A;<�V>=<CA�@>HAGBHC�>ED�Z=>PA;K�GC�>H�A;<�1=>?<@A\�cF�G@_RB=BHZ�A;<�V>=<CA�V>=�@>HABHR<D�VB=<�QGHGZ<Q<HAK�E>HZ<=�V>=<CA=F�;G=̂<CA�=>AGAB>HCK�GHD�;GXBAGA�=<CA>=GAB>H�XF�746K�A;<�1=>?<@A�VREVBEC�H<<DC�BD<HABVB<D�A>�QGBHAGBH�;BZ;�_RGEBAF�;GXBAGA\a��8C�A;<�1=>?<@A�CA=GDDE<C�A>PHC�GHD�A;<�5<GHGPGFK�BA�BC�<CC<HABGE�V>=�A;<�5>PHC�A>�5<GHGPGF�0GCA<=�1EGH�TLJNkUK�A;<�@>QQRHBAFOBD<HABVB<D�̂BCB>H�A>�@>HH<@A�6>CEFHK�6>HGEDK�GHD�.E<�3ERQ�V>=�@G=OV=<<�G@@<CC�A>�A;<�5<GHGPGFK�PBA;�<lBCABHZ�GHD�]EGHH<D�A=GBEC�Q<<ABHZ�Z>GEC�>V�G�CAG@Y<D�E>>]�A=GBEK�=<@=<GAB>H�>]]>=ARHBAB<C�A>�XRBED�@>QQRHBAF�;<GEA;K�GHD�EB̂<EF�A=GBE;<GDC�A;GA�C<=̂<�GC�<@>H>QB@�D=B̂<=C\a��c343Sd59�7d987h8458f37�./00W4d5d39:�6>CEFHK�6>HGEDK�GHD�.E<�3ERQ�=<CBD<HAC�;Ĝ<�E>HZ�D=<GQ<D�>V�]=>A<@ABHZ�BAC�C@<HB@�XG@YD=>]K�XRA�EG@Y<D�A;<�VBHGH@BGE�=<C>R=@<C\�8EE�A>PHC�G=<�BH�A;<�mMA;�]<=@<HABE<�V>=�E>POBH@>Q<K�N�]>BHA�X<E>P�A;<�D<VBHBAB>H�>V�DBCGD̂GHAGZ<D\�5;<�A>PHCe�PBEDVB=<�=BCY�BC�BH�A;<�kg=D�]<=@<HABE<�GHD�VE>>D�=BCY�BC�BH�A;<�knA;�]<=@<HABE<�T.3o�.EBQGA<�GHD�pRCAB@<�9@=<<HBHZ�5>>EU\a��5;<�1=>?<@AeC�=<CA>=<D�V>=<CAC�PBEE�XRVV<=�g�A>PHC�V=>Q�PBEDVB=<\�2>POBH@>Q<�;>RC<;>EDCK�EBY<�qBAABAGC�.>RHAF�P;<=<�A;<�Q<DBGH�;>RC<;>ED�BH@>Q<�>V�rmMKNgM�BC�LIs�X<E>P�A;<�CAGA<PBD<�Q<DBGH�>V�rkLKMJJ�TLJLNUK�G=<�E<CC�EBY<EF�A>�BĤ<CA�BH�A=<<�A=BQQBHZ�>=�X=RC;�=<Q>̂GEK�QGYBHZ�CR==>RHDBHZ�VB=<�=<CBEB<HA�EGHDC�Q>=<�BQ]>=AGHA�A>�]=<̂<HA�PBEDVB=<C�V=>Q�C]=<GDBHZ�A;=>RZ;>RA�A;<�A>PHC\a��

������������������t������������u����t��������������������������!������������v������wx�yz
{



���������	


�������������������������������������� ������������������������������������	�� �!���� ��"���������������������!�� �!�#��!�$"%&'()*+�,-&.*/)/�01)2'1)*3453�46789:;�:<=�7>?@=AB�C>?B=ABD�B<=�EFDB�EF>G=H�C>IJFB=�KE?AL�MIB<IN�FN�?B<=>MID=�A?NN=AB=O�EFNODAFC=H�A?NB>IKPBING�B?�>=GI?NFE�A?ND=>JFBI?NH�INAEPOING�B<=�QR47SD�TUVW=F>�JIDI?N�KFAL=O�KW�FG=NAI=DH�B>IK=DH�FNO�FG>IAPEBP>FEIDBD�FXB=>�O=AFO=D�?X�MFB=>�D<?>BFG=D�FNO�E=GFE�A?NXEIABDH�FD�M=EE�FD�B<=�6?PNBFIND�B?�Y?PNO�5>==NMFW�Z38H�4V[U�MIEOEIX=�A>?DDINGDH�FNO�:Z9SD�\=DB=>N�9<=AL=>K?F>OD�4NIBIFBIJ=]�̂�Z8:4_Z8̀�5_8̀�a�9̀ 468:b�cbY4̀4bZ9b;�:<=�7>?@=AB�KPIEOD�>=GI?NFE�>=DIEI=NA=�KW�=NFKEING�DC=AI=D�B?�dIG>FB=�B?�OIXX=>=NB�dIA>?VAEIdFB=D]�:Z9SD�c=DIEI=NB�̀FNOD�6FCCING�7>?@=AB�>FB=D�ef]fg�hiH[ij�FA>=Dk�?X�B<=�7>?@=AB�FD�XF>�FK?J=�?>�FK?J=�FJ=>FG=�X?>�A?NN=ABIJIBW�FNO�AEIdFB=�XE?MD�K=AFPD=�B<=�A?NBIGP?PD�fHTUU�X==B�B?�jHlUU�X==B�>IOG=�B?C?G>FC<W�=NFKE=D�XE?>F�FNO�XFPNF�dIG>FBI?N]�̂�:<=�7>?@=ABSD�d?PNBFIN?PD�B=>>FIN�FNO�JF>I=BW�?X�CEFNBD�CEFW�F�L=W�>?E=�IN�B<=�D<IXBING�X?>=DB�d?DFIA�M<=>=�MIEOEIX=�AFN�OIDC=>D=�FNO�FOFCB�B<>?PG<�OIXX=>=NB�=E=JFBI?ND�FNO�A?>>=DC?NOING�<FKIBFBD�IN�>=DC?ND=�B?�A<FNG=D�IN�C>=AICIBFBI?NH�B=dC=>FBP>=H�FNO�J=G=BFBI?N�FD�B<=�AEIdFB=�A<FNG=D]�̂�:<=�7>?@=ABSD�O>WH�A?NIX=>�X?>=DBD�MIB<�O>?PG<BV>=DIDBFNB�DC=AI=D�ID�IN�B<=�9=NB>FE�\FD<INGB?N�4NIBIFBIJ=�h9\4kH�?N=�?X�mU�XI>DB�EFNODAFC=D�?X�B<=�nYoYSD�ZFBI?NFE�\IEOXI>=�9>IDID�YB>FB=GWH�FN�pFEE�<FNODH�FEE�EFNODp�FCC>?FA<�B?�>=OPA=�AFBFDB>?C<IA�MIEOXI>=�>IDL]�9\4�D<?PEO�>=A=IJ=�qmUf]i6�IN�RICF>BIDFN�4NX>FDB>PABP>=�̀FM�hR4̀k�IN�oQfUffVfj]�9?NBINP=O�>=DB?>FBI?N�MIEE�<=EC�C>=J=NB�XPBP>=�XI>=D]�̂�Z8:4_Z8̀�5_8̀�a�98cR_Z�YbrnbY:c8:4_Z;�:<=�7>?@=AB�A?PEO�D=sP=DB=>�PC�B?�fiHUUU�B?ND�?X�AF>K?N�FNNPFEEW�MIB<�>=DB?>FBI?NH�M?>B<�fiHUUU�N=B�AF>K?N�OI?tIO=�?XXD=B�A>=OIBD�hfUfm�=DBIdFB=k]�\IB<�X?>=DB�<=FEB<�B>=FBd=NBD�B<FB�<FJ=�O=A>=FD=O�XI>=�>IDLH�INAEPOING�C>=DA>IK=O�KP>NDH�B<INNINGH�FNO�O>?PG<B�B?E=>FNB�D==O�CEFNBINGDH�B<=�X?>=DB�ID�E=DD�EIL=EW�B?�KP>N�FNO�B<PD�MIEE�A?NBINP=�B?�D=sP=DB=>�AF>K?N]�̂�Z8:4_Z8̀�5_8̀�a�38R4:8:�9_ZZb9:4u4:Q;�:<=�7>?@=AB�SD�dIG>FBI?N�A?>>IO?>H�FO@FA=NAW�B?�C>?B=AB=O�EFNODH�FNO�=E=JFBI?N�A?NN=ABIJIBW�ID�A>PAIFE�B?�EFNODAFC=VDAFE=�=XX?>BD�B?�>==DBFKEID<�MIEOEIX=�A?NN=ABIJIBW�FA>?DD�B<=�DBFB=�X>?d�B<=�M=B�\=DB�9FDAFO=D�X?>=DBD�B?�FNO�B<>?PG<?PB�B<=�O>W�bFDB�9FDAFO=D�X?>=DB]�̂�:?�XFAIEIBFB=�EFNODAFC=VDAFE=�d?J=d=NB�FNO�?J=>A?d=�B<=�KF>>I=>�?X�4V[UH�\Yv_:�<FD�A?NDB>PAB=O�fe�MIEOEIX=�A>?DDINGD�?J=>�FNO�PNO=>�4V[UH�INAEPOING�B<=�XI>DB�=J=>�MIEOEIX=�K>IOG=�FNO�B<=�EF>G=DB�?J=>A>?DDING�IN�Z?>B<�8d=>IAFH�B?�>=A?NN=AB�<FKIBFBH�C>?d?B=�MIEOEIX=�d?J=d=NBH�FNO�dFINBFIN�G=N=BIA�JF>IFKIEIBW]�\Yv_:�O?APd=NBD�jHUUU�A>?DDINGD�F�W=F>]�9>?DDINGD�F>=�MIB<IN�i�dIE=D�?X�B<=�7>?@=AB]�̂�RbZbo4:Y�v4Y8vu8Z:85bv�9_66nZ4:4bY;�:<=�7>?@=ABSD�XI>=�>=DIEI=NB�X?>=DBD�MIEE�<=EC�C>?B=AB�E?MVINA?d=�c?NFEO�FNO�c?DEWN�X>?d�MIEOXI>=D]�\IB<�<IG<�XI>=�>IDL�FNO�d?O=>FB=�B?�<IG<�C>?KFKIEIBWH�IB�DPCC?>BD�vZcSD�fUVQ=F>�o?>=DB�3=FEB<�YB>FB=GIA�7EFN�hfUfUk�B?�>=OPA=�>IDL�B?�C>?B=AB�EIJ=D]�4X�N?B�C>?B=AB=OH�B<=�FJ=>FG=�X=O=>FE�A?DB�?X�MIEOXI>=�DPCC>=DDI?N�X?>�m�<?d=�?J=>�IBD�EIX=BId=�M?PEO�K=�qfjHwUU]�̂�3453�̀bubc85b;�:<=�7>?@=AB�C>?JIO=D�feVTfg�IN�dFBA<ING�XPNODH�MIB<�qT6�IN�<FNO�X>?d�F�DBFB=�9?ddPNIBW�o?>=DB�G>FNB�FNO�FN?B<=>�qfVT6�FNBIAICFB=O�X>?d�B<=�DFd=�G>FNB�C>?G>Fd]�4N�FOOIBI?NH�?J=>�qlUUHUUU�<FD�K==N�CE=OG=O�IN�C>IJFB=�EFNO�dFBA<�FNO�AFD<�O?NFBI?ND]�̂�boo494bZ9Q�_o�Y98̀b;�:<=�7>?@=AB�ID�d?>=�=XXIAI=NB�FNO�A?DB�=XX=ABIJ=�FD�F�DINGE=�C<FD=�C>?B=AB=O�K=X?>=�B<=�99o�̀̀ 9�FG>==d=NB�=tCI>=D�hIN�fUfek]�vIJIOING�B<=�7>?@=AB�INB?�DdFEE=>�C<FD=D�INA>=FD=D�EFNO�JFEP=D�FNO�>IDLH�FD�E?AFE�O=J=E?C=>D�M?PEO�K=�INB=>=DB=O�IN�DdFEE=>�X?>=DB�KE?ALDH�=DC=AIFEEW�B<?D=�AE?D=DB�B?�FO@FA=NB�O=J=E?Cd=NBDH�X?>�F�dFDB=>VCEFNN=O�>=D?>B�?>�>=DIO=NBIFE�O=J=E?Cd=NB]�̂�3453�cb8v4ZbYY�8Zv�987894:Q;�:<=�7>?@=AB�<FD�F�c=FOIN=DD�DA?>=�?X�j�?PB�?X�l]�:<=�D=EE=>�ID�<IG<EW�d?BIJFB=O�FD�ID�:Z9H�B<=�X?>=DB�dFNFG=>�FNO�FG=NB]�vZcSD�>?KPDB�dFNFG=d=NB�CEFN�X?>�B<=�:=FNFMFW�9?ddPNIBW�o?>=DB�MIEE�FCCEW�B?�B<=�7>?@=ABH�MIB<�DC=AIXIA�F>=FD�FOO>=DD=O�IN�PCA?dING�PCOFB=D]�6IN=>FE�>IG<BDH�C>=EIdINF>W�BIBE=H�FNO�dF>L=B�FNFEWD=D�F>=�A?dCE=B=]�8N�?CBI?N�ID�N?B�>=sPI>=O]�̂�Y:b\8cvY347�987894:Q;�:Z9�ID�=DBFKEID<ING�F�C>IJFB=�DB=MF>OD<IC�XPNO�>FID=O�B<>?PG<�C>IJFB=�C<IEFNB<>?CW�X?>�E?NGVB=>d�dFNFG=d=NB�FDDIDBFNA=�X?>�vZc�FNO�\vo\]�o=O=>FE�9\4�XPNOING�A?PEO�FED?�DPCC?>B�X?>=DB�<=FEB<�dFNFG=d=NB]�vZc�dFNFG=D�B<=�FO@FA=NB�:=FNFMFW�9?ddPNIBW�o?>=DBH�D?�MIEE�D==�A?DB�=XXIAI=NAI=D�MIB<�d?NIB?>ING�FNO�dFINBFINING�FO@FA=NB�EFNO]�̂�



���������	


�������������������������������������� ������������������������������������	�� �!�"�� ��#���������������������!�� �!�$��!�%#&'()*+',, -./01023�45�600�742893942/ :;42<60805.=�74/3�>?.50�7411931023 :>9@208�AB5C?./0�D@5001023 EF93=0�>0.5C? :G9205.=�H0305192.3942 :&'()*+',,�IJK(L�I(LLM�NOJP' QNRSSJPK*+T�U(PK*',VW>W�>02.345�A.33X�GB55.XY�VW>W�>02.345�G.59.�7.23Z0==Y�VW>W�>3.30�[0\50/023.39]0�̂D�>3.30�_3?�C42@50//942.=�89/359C3̀�a91�>C?5905Y�̂./?92@342�>3.30�>02.345�bB8X�̂.529CcY�F?0�a93393./�74B23X�d4.58�4e�74119//94205/Y�F.\./?�>B/3.92.f=0�6450/3�74==.f45.39]0Y�gc.24@.2<̂ 02.3C?00�;.3942.=�6450/3�7=0�-=B1�[.2@05�H9/359C3Y�gc.24@.2<̂ 02.3C?00�;.3942.=�6450/3�>B\05]9/45Y�h.c.1.�;.3942Y�793X�4e�7=0�-=B1Y�793X�4e�[4/=X2Y�793X�4e�-==02/fB5@Y�G4B23.92/�34�>4B28�i5002Z.X�F5B/3Y�a93393./�742/05].3942�F5B/3Y�7.f92�G4B23.92�jj7Y�a93393./�7?.\305�̂D�6.51�6450/35X�D//4C9.3942Y�a93393./�74B23X�7?.1f05�4e�741105C0Y�̂>HgF�>4B3?�70235.=�[0@942�d94=4@X�F0.1Y�7?0Cc05f4.58�A.53205/?9\�A=.2292@�741193300Y�̂./?92@342�H0\.531023�4e�69/?�.28�̂9=8=9e0Y�DB8Bf42Y�d.CcC4B235X�k45/0102Y�̂./?92@342�F5.9=/�D//4C9.3942Y�-]05@5002�G4B23.92�d9c0�D==9.2C0Y�d./0C.1\�gB3e93305/Y�̂./?92@342�gB38445�>C?44=Y�[4/=X2�6950�H0\.531023Y�F0.2.Z.X�7411B293X�6450/3�D8]9/45X�741193300Y�.28�h.c91.�d./92�l230@5.308�A=.2WmnoIpmI�qorn&spIqnoNOJKK�NK't(PK puM�N*+Tv s(Pw�&'')x��������y�����������z���������
����������V>HD�6450/3�>05]9C0:{EE�l280\02802C0�D]02B0̀�|>7^./?92@342̀�H7�}E}~E}E}<}E~<:�:_/C433W/30Z.53�B/8.W@4] y�����������z���������
����������V>HD�6450/3�>05]9C0:}}E�>̂ �|58�D]0A453=.28̀�g[���}E{�E_<}:|<~:}|.1XW/92@?�B/8.W@4] 
���������������������������������������^./?92@342�H0\.531023�4e�;.3B5.=�[0/4B5C0/AWgW�d4��{�E:{::::�̂./?92@342�>3�>-g=X1\9.̀�̂D��_~E{<�E:{|�E<�E}<:{E_1.5cW5008�825WZ.W@4]



���������	


�������������������������������������� ������������������������������������	�� �!�"�� ��#���������������������!�� �!�$��!�%#



����������

	
���
��������������������������������� �������������������
��������������������� �!�����"��������������������� ���� �#�� �$"



���������	

�
���������
��������������������������������	�������
��
���
������������������	������ !"�# $%&'�()*��+��, &"-.//0�12304560�7/849:"!%;�<�=>"'��?%!@:>$"�>ABCDEC-�FEGHIJKAK�LMLN�A2./84�O/P5QR�S.2P.5T�A30U60P VWXYMMXMMMAK�LMLN�C20ZA/U/.5[�\284�G]5./ VWXYMMXMMMAK�LMLN�S.2̂/Q4�\2848 V_XMMMXMMMAK�LMLN�S.2̂/Q4�̀Q./8 _aMA2./84�O/P5QR�A30U60P�H2�D54/ VMH245[�S.2̂/Q4�\2848 V_XMMMXMMMH245[�S.2̂/Q4�̀Q./8 _aMH.5Q4�C5T/ G6b/�c5Qd H.5Q4�\284 AOS�A30U60P C20ZA/U�\284�G]5./ G45438efggh�ijkhlmnh�ogpl qrs tqusssusss tvuwssusss tvuwssusss xfmyl�zsz{-|C|J̀ O�D|G\JESHEIC}~g�efggh�ijkhlmnh�ogpl��fj�g�l��n����gf�mhghl����jhpgf�g�qrs�m�fgp�jy��fj�k�ln�g��jf�nh��yjfgpl�mh��mh��n��jflmhl�pm��jh�~m�nlml�plfmlg�n�m����m��m�ghl�lj�yg�gfm�u�plmlgu�mh���j�m��yjfgpl�mh��nh��nlpm���jkhl�u�omp~nh�ljh���jpnlnjhg��hg�l�lj��fg�gfljhu�m��fj�nhghl��m�m���j��khnl�u�l~g�lfm�l�np�jhg�jy�l~g��mpl�mh���jpl�~n�~���l~fgmlghg��kh�fjlg�lg����j��p��nl~nh�m��jhln�kjkp��susss�m�fg�yjfgpl��mh�p�m�g��}~g��fj�g�l��kn��p�jh�q�hgmf����jfgpl��g�m����fj�g�lpu�nh��k�nh��l~g�}m~k�m��gm��mlgfp��gpp�l~mh�q��n�gp�yfj��l~g��fj�g�l���jfgpl��g�m���ykh�nh���n����kf�~mpg�mh�gmpg�ghl�jh�qrs�m�fgp�jy�l~g��fj�gfl���}~fjk�~�jl~gf�ykh�nh�u�efgml��ghnhpk�m��jhpgf�mh����n����kf�~mpg�ygg�mh���mhm�g�mp�m��jf�nh���j��khnl��yjfgpl�nh��gf�glknl������nlnjhm��m��m�ghl��jhpgf�mlnjh��mh�p��n����g��kf�~mpg��yfj��l~g��mh�j�hgfu��g�mh��}fgg��mf����gf�mhghl��fj�g�l��ghgynlp�lj�l~g��j�m��g�jhj���mfg�pk�plmhlnm�u��fj�n�nh��pkplmnhm��g�yjfgpl�pg�ljf�g���j��ghl�mh��pg�kfnh���gmf�fjkh��m��gpp�yjf�l~g��susss�vssusss��npnljfp�mhhkm�����~j��kffghl���kpg�l~g��fj�gfl���}~g��fj�g�l�~mp�m��mf�g�yg�gfm��hg�kp�����jhpgf�nh�������nplg���lgg�~gm��~m�nlml�mh���mnhlmnhnh���km�nl��jy��nyg�mh��hmlkfm��fg�fgmlnjhm��p�m�g�yjf�{susss��pmn�jfp�plmlnjhg��ml�����m�m���mpg��nlpm��SJI�|\H�A|̀ HBJ|GET�2.4504���}� ������i���e�i��}�}~g��fj�gfl��np��mhm�g��kh�gf�m��jfgpl��lg�mf�p~n���jkh�n��¡���¢���mh���fm�ln�gp�nh��k�g���mhl�pm��m�g�j�gfmlnjhp�mh��nh�fgmpnh���gl�mh��mh��fn�mfnmh��kyygfp��g�jh���~ml�o���jfgpl��fm�ln�g�£k�gp�fg�knfgu�n��fj�nh���n���nyg�~m�nlml�mh���mlgf��km�nl�¤�kmhlnl��yjf�pm��jh�¥����¦�¦i ������� }���¦£��}£§̈��fjlg�lnh��l~g��mh�©p��kffghl�kpgp�jy�yjfgplf��~g��p��mnhlmnh�m��n�gfpnyng��g�jhj���nh�l~g�fg�njh��¦hg�lfgg�ymf���mhm�gf�np�g���j�g�u�mh���j�m��yjfgplf���jhlfm�ljfp�mfg�gh�m�g��nh�l~g�pkplmnhm��g�~mf�gpl�jy��j��gf�nm���fkp~�mh��ynfg�jj��mh��mh�m�gfm�g�jy�qs�m�fgp¤�gmf�¥��
ª������«
���¬�
���®��̄�
����°
��̄�±��
����������������
������������������²�³���́µ�ª������«
���¬�
�¶



���������	


��������������������������� ������������������������������������������������	���������������������������������	�� !"#$%�&"!'()%*+*%,-�%./�012/�.30�4/55673182318/9�:;390�389�/30<�3==/00�2;�7>521?5/�71550@�*2�.30�91A/:0/�0?/=1/0�389�7;025<�BCDEC6</3:6;59�023890@�%./�0;150�3:/�F53=135�;>2430.�389�2155G�4/5569:318/9�389�?:;9>=21A/@�%./�7159�=51732/�350;�355;40�H;:�4182/:�.3:A/02@I��#)!J!K*)�L#J# *%$�"#)"#M%*!J-�(/5389�%://� 3:7�2:3150�9:34�NCGCCC6OCCGCCC�A1012;:0�388>355<G�P;502/:18F�2./�5;=35�/=;8;7<@�($�J3A35�L30/�Q1203?�10�2./�3:/3R0�?:173:<�/=;8;71=�P30/S�2./�2:3=2�0/:A/0�30�38�37/812<�H;:�83A35�H37151/0�389�.;020�2:31818F0�H;:�0315;:0G�0/3:=.T:/0=>/�389�H1:/�9/?3:27/820@I��#)!J!K*)�L#J# *%$�J!J6%*KL#"-�L/8/H120�18=5>9/�.>8218F�5/30/0S�8321A/�?5382�F32./:18FS�2:1P35�?5382G�2://G�389�P3:U�.3:A/0218FS�P:>0.�.3:A/0218FT5/30/0S�389�H1:/4;;9�035/0�H:;7�35:/39<�9;48/9�2://0@�"/A/8>/�10�7;:/�2.38�VWCGCCC�388>355<@�%./�012/�P>HH/:0�389�?:;2/=20�L:/7/:2;8R0�432/:�0;>:=/@I��%X"#M%#J#'�$&#)*#$�XML*%M%-�%.10�2:3=2�10�3�=:121=35�=;7?;8/82�;H�2./�).1=;�)://U�Y32/:0./9G�;8/�;H�2./�2;?�:/F1;835�432/:0./90�H;:�0357;8@�$2//5./39�Z2.:/32/8/9�>89/:�2./�#$M[�389�=;.;�0357;8�Z3�0232/�0?/=1/0�;H�=;8=/:8[�3:/�9;=>7/82/9�;8�2./�?:;?/:2<�ZYM�'/?2@� 10.�389�Y15951H/[@I�� *$X�L#J@-�).1=;�)://U�Y32/:0./9�.30�2./�.1F./02�832>:35�?:;9>=21;8�;H�=.>7�\�=;.;�0357;8�18�#302�Q1203?�);>82<�389�01F81H1=382�02//5./39�\�=>22.:;32�2:;>2�:>80@�%./�BCOE�).1=;�)://U�Y32/:0./9�M00782�389�"/02;:321;8�&538�8;2/9�=;80/:A321;8�/30/7/820�;8�2./�2:3=2�30�3�U/<�0357;8�?:;2/=21;8�02:32/F<@I��Y*]']* #�L#J# *%-�Y/02/:8�2;39�10�3�Y30.18F2;8�0?/=1/0�;H�=;8=/:8�H;>89�18�2./�432/:0./9@�!2./:�0?/=1/0�=;77;8�2;�2./�432/:0./9�18=5>9/�P53=U�P/3:G�P;P=32G�9//:G�=;<;2/G�';>F530�0̂>1::/5G�P5>/�F:;>0/G�P;P=32G�?15/32/9�4;;9?/=U/:G�F:/32�P5>/�./:;8G�389�:/965/FF/9�H:;F@I��(J*_(#� !"#$%�)!KK(J*%*#$-�%./�012/�10�8/025/9�P/24//8�̀GECC�3=:/0�;H�?:;2/=2/9�H;:/020�18�2./�L:/7/:2;86;48/9�(81;8�"1A/:�Y32/:0./9�389�2./�".;9;9/89:;8�&:/0/:A/G�3�aECC63=:/�2:3=2�412.�;8/�;H�2./�5302�:/731818F�;59�F:;42.�Y/02/:8�:/9�=/93:�389�';>F530�H1:�023890�18�&>F/2�$;>89@I��YM%#"�_(M]*%,-�%./�012/�10�39b3=/82�2;�2./�(81;8�"1A/:�Y32/:0./9G�3�.1F.6̂>3512<�7>81=1?35�0>:H3=/�432/:�:/0/:A;1:�0>??5<18F�9:18U18F�432/:�H;:�357;02�3�2.1:9�;H�Q1203?�);>82<R0�:/019/820@�%./�?:;b/=2�4155�?:;.1P12�18=;7?321P5/�>0/0�18�2./�39b3=/82�P>HH/:�3:/3G�P;502/:18F�432/:0./9�A13P1512<@I��YM%#"�_(M]*%,6$%"#MK ]!Y-�%./�2:3=2R0�4/253890�P;;02�3̂>1H/:�:/=.3:F/�389�0>77/:�H5;40�18�).1=;�)://U�389�73182318�2/7?/:32>:/0�=:121=35�2;�0357;8�:>80@�%./�H;:/02�H152/:0�0/917/82T?;55>23820�389�:/F>532/0�432/:�H5;4G�4.1=.�0>??;:20�0357;8�:>80�389�?:;2/=20�2:1P35�0./55H10.�P/90�32�2./�=://U�7;>2.@I��&(L]*)�M))#$$-�%./�?:;b/=2�4155�73182318�3==/00�H;:�</3:6:;>89�?>P51=�:/=:/321;8�;8�2./�?:;?/:2<@�(/5389�%://� 3:7�.30�;A/:�NCGCCC�?/;?5/�A1012�388>355<�389�>0/�120�NC6=3:�2:315./39�5;2@�OE�715/0�;H�4/55673182318/9�2:3150�3:/�>0/9�P<�.1U/:0G�7;>82318�P1U/:0G�.;:0/�:19/:0G�P/::<�389�7>0.:;;7�?1=U/:0@I��$)#J*)-�%./�012/�10�/3015<�A1/4/9�H:;7�2./�)12<�;H�L:/7/:2;8G�H:;7�H/::1/0�3??:;3=.18F�2./�L:/7/:2;8�%/:71835G�389�412.�P18;=>53:0�H:;7�9;482;48�$/3225/�389�$/3%3=�31:?;:2@�(81̂>/�832>:35�H/32>:/0�18=5>9/�'1=U/:0;8�)://U�432/:H355�389�?38;:371=�A1/40�H:;7�c3=.R0�];;U;>2G�2./�?:;?/:2<R0�.1F./02�?;182I��X*$%!"*)T)(]%("M]T%"*LM]-�%./�012/�.30�F:/32�01F81H1=38=/�2;�2./�$>̂>3710.�%:1P/�H;:�P/8/H120�2;�0357;8�412.18�2./�).1=;�)://UG�432/:�̂>3512<�H;:�2./1:�0./55H10.�P/90�32�2./�7;>2.G�389�10�:/F>53:5<�>0/9�H;:�2:39121;835�H;;9�389�7/91=1835�.3:A/02@�$//�18=5>9/9�5/22/:�;H�0>??;:2@I��defghigjgkJ!�&"!%#)%*!J@�%./�?:;b/=2�.30�24;�l;818F�=53001H1=321;80-�">:35�Y;;9/9�Z"Y[DO�94/5518F�>812TBC�3=:/0S� ;:/02�"/0;>:=/�]3890�Z "][DO�94/5518F�>812TEC�3=:/0@�*H�.3:A/02/9G�2./:/�10�;85<�'J"617?;0/9�m6</3:�7;:32;:1>7�;8�5389�=;8A/:01;8@�M9b3=/82�2;�=12<�517120G�2./�012/�10�?:17/�53:F/�5;2�0>P91A101;8@I��

n�����������������o���p���������������������q����r������������s�t������ru�v����w������x



���������	


��������������������������� ������������������������������������������������	���������������������������������	�� !"#$%"&'�()'(*+,-!"(&,.�-/0�123451�56�7280�75�953:0;<0�7/0�=>34�2:�3>;;51?�127/�>@23@�=>345130;�953:240;23@�5A7253:�75�40<0=5A�>34�8>B282C0�<>=D0�>34�=53@E7280�65;0:7�8>3>@0;�>AA;5>9/23@�;072;08037F�%27/5D7�>3�0>:08037?�7/0;0�2:�/2@/�=2G0=2/554�7/0�7;>97�12==�>=:5�H0�:5=4�75�>�40<0=5A0;FI��!#J!(&"-� !"#�*,&E($*"-K.�#0<0=5A8037�23�L27:>A�(5D37M�953723D0:�75�0BA>34F�+D9/�56�27:�@;517/�2:�7204�75�7/0�95D37MN:�75A�234D:7;M.�7/0�"><M�H;23@:�OP?PPPQ�:>2=5;:�>34�7/02;�6>82=20:�75�L27:>A?�9537;2HD723@�75�=53@E70;8�@;517/�>34�408>34�65;�/5D:23@FI��!#J!(&"-� !"#�*,&ER'&+&'-$".�!995;423@�75�R;080;753N:�S>;G:?�'09;0>7253?�>34�$A03�,A>90�S=>3�TUPVW�4;>67X?�7/0�A5AD=>7253�65;�R;080;753�>34�27:�>::592>704�*;H>3�Y;517/�!;0>:�2:�A;5Z09704�75�239;0>:0�HM�V[?PPP�;0:24037:�HM�UP\[?�>3�239;0>:0�56�UO�A0;9037FI��!#J!(&"-�-$�-]),�S'$S&'-K?�7/0�=>345130;�513:�OOP�>9;0:�7/>7�>;0�C5304�'EVP�T>==5123@�O?OPP�/5D:23@�D327:�53�7/0�OOP�>9;0:X�23�R;080;753�>34�>;0�:DHZ097�75�40<0=5A8037�5<0;�7/0�2370;8042>70�70;8F�!�=>;@0�;0:240372>=�40<0=5A8037�2:�23�A;590::�ZD:7�>�82=0�6;58�7/0�7;>97�H5D34>;MFI��!R) )-K�-$�#&̂ & $SEY&$Y'!S]K.�-/0�:270�2:�127/23�U�82=0:�56�R;080;753N:�D;H>3�90370;�>34�>4Z>9037�75�927M�=2827:?�,90329�<201:�8>G0�7/0�7;>97�>77;>972<0�65;�=>;@0�;0:240372>=�=57�40<0=5A8037FI��!R) )-K�-$�#&̂ & $SE_&!,)R) )-K.�!990::�2:�A;5<2404�HM�ADH=29�;5>4:�75�7/0�35;7/�>34�:5D7/?�>34�7/0�0B703:2<0�=5@@23@�;5>4:�7;><0;:0�7/0�A;5A0;7MF�*72=2720:�>;0�;0>42=M�><>2=>H=0F�-/0�7;>97�2:�>=;0>4M�:DH42<2404�2375�=0@>=�=57:�>34�95D=4�H0�:5=4�:0A>;>70=M�288042>70=MFI��̀abcadefg,*SS$'-�&h),-)"Y�($",&'̂ !-)$"�)")-)-!-)̂&,?�,-'!-&Y)&,�$'�S !",�E,! +$".�-/0�(/295�(;00G�%>70;:/04�!::0::8037�T,DiD>82:/�-;2H0X�2403726204�953:0;<>7253�0>:08037:�53�7/2:�:270�>:�>�G0M�:7;>70@MF�-/0�"+_,j"$!!�&,!�'095<0;M�S=>3�65;�7/0�SD@07�,5D34�,700=/0>4�/2@/=2@/7:�A;5709723@�1>70;:/04�A;590::0:F�%#_%�240372620:�:700=/0>4�>34�95/5�D:0�56�/>H27>7�53�A;5A0;7MFI��
,*SS$'-�&h),-)"Y�($",&'̂ !-)$"�)")-)!-)̂&,?�,-'!-&Y)&,�$'�S !",�E�'&Y)$".�!4<>390:�@5>=:�56�7/0�SD@07�,5D34�S>;730;:/2A�!97253�!@034>�239=D423@�_5;0:7:?�,7;0>8:?�!2;�kD>=27M?�$D7455;�!972<27M?�&9535829�̂27>=27M?�,>=853?�>34�,5D34�,701>;4:/2AF�YS(N:�(53:0;<>7253�S=>3�TUPUVEUPUlX�240372620:�1>70;:/04�>:�75A�A;25;27M�65;�65;0:7=>34�A;57097253�>34�;09;0>7253�5AA5;7D32720:FI��($+S &+&"-�S'$-&(-&#� !"#,�E�%$'L)"Y�_$'&,-,.�)7�2:�7/0�85:7�7/;0>70304�7;>97�56�5<0;�mP?PPP�>9;0:�56�95372@D5D:�:7>70�>34�A;2<>70�728H0;=>34:?�239=D423@�715�_5;0:7� 0@>9M�A;5Z097:.�->/DM>�]0>41>70;:�>34�#01>775�]0>41>70;:F�)7�12==�HD660;�>34�28A;5<0�<2>H2=27M�56�>4Z>9037�,7>70�Y;003�+5D37>23�_5;0:7?�>34�:DAA5;7:�7/0�;0@253>=�65;0:7;M�:0975;FI��($+S &+&"-�S'$-&(-&#� !"#,�E�($""&(-)̂)-K.�-/0�7;>97�2:�>�9;D92>=�=23G�H071003�Y;003�+5D37>23�,7>70�_5;0:7?�L27:>A�(5D37MN:�"01H0;;M�]2==�]0;27>@0�S>;G?�7/0�(27M�56�R;080;753�%>70;:/04?�A;5A0;720:�51304�>34�8>3>@04�HM�7/0�*F,F�"><M?�>34�A;2<>70=M�953:0;<04�65;0:7=>34�239=D423@�Y;0>7�S0323:D=>�(53:0;<>39MN:�"01H0;;M�%554:�(588D327M�_5;0:7FI��

n������o����p��������q��������r��sq�������t��������u�v������rq���s�������w������x

o����������������������������������y�z���{��������������������������������u�v������rq��������|����sx



���������	


��������������������������� ������������������������������������������������	�� ������������������������������	��!"#$%&#&'(�$)"(&!(&*�%+'*,�-�.+/0(+(1�02�34456572�67�896:324�;7<=:9>9?�324�76@9A�@3B5636�72�?569C�6@9�=A7D9;6�;7<=:9<926?�324�BEFF9A?�7G9A�HCIII�3;A9?�7F�/A9<9A672�J369A?@94�=A769;694�:324�324�6@9�KLII-3;A9�)@7474924A72�$A9?9AG9C�@7:452M�729�7F�6@9�:3?6�A9<35252M�?6324?�7F�$EM96�,7E24�7:4�MA786@�F7A9?6NO��!"#$%&#&'(�$)"(&!(&*�%+'*,�-�)&!)&+(0"'1�(@9�9>5?652M�6A35:?�3A9�3�A9M5723:�:52P�FA7<�/A9<9A672�5267�6@7E?324?�7F�3;A9?�7F�?6369�F7A9?6�324�;7E26Q�=3AP?N��/A9<9A672R?�$3AP?C�)9;A936572C�324�"=92�,=3;9�$:32�STIUV�4A3F6W�;569?�3�2994�F7A�FE6EA9�=3AP:324�324�<7A9�6A35:?N�(@9�;56Q�;EAA926:Q�@3?�72:Q�UUU�3;A9?�7F�236EA3:�:324�3A93NO��XYZ[\]̂�_̀ Ya]b\b�cd\eZd\],()+(&f0!�g+%h&1�'9?6:94�B968992�6@7E?324?�7F�3;A9?�7F�?6369�F7A9?6:324?C�/A9<9A672-=A769;694�8369A?@94C�324�=A5G369�=A9?9AG9�856@�729�7F�6@9�:3?6�7:4�MA786@�F7A9?6�?6324?�52�$EM96�,7E24C�6@9�?569�5?�@5M@:Q�?6A369M5;N�06�;7<=:9<926?�H�293ABQ�i7A9?6�%9M3;Q�=A7D9;6?�324�=A769;6?�87AP52M�F7A9?6:324NO��!%0#+(&�)&,0%0&'!&1�(@9�=A7D9;6�3A93�5?�A9?5:5926�67�;:5<369�;@32M9�324�=3A6�7F�3�@5M@:Q�;7229;694�:324?;3=9�S'36EA9�!72?9AG32;QC�)9?5:5926�324�!7229;694�%324?;3=9?WN�$A769;6572�3::78?�F7A�:324?;3=9-?;3:9�F7A9?6�<323M9<926�324�BEFF9A?�34D3;926�87AP52M�324�=A769;694�F7A9?6?�FA7<�@E<32�45?6EAB32;9NO��.+/0(+(�!"''&!(0g0(j1�!7229;694�67�kICIII�3;A9?�7F�87AP52M�324�=A769;694�F7A9?6:324�:324?;3=9C�6@9�?569�?9AG9?�3?�3�;A565;3:�:52P�52�@3B5636�;7229;65G56Q�F7A�2E<9A7E?�?=9;59?�7F�85:4:5F9C�=3A65;E:3A:Q�B968992�6@9�/A9<9A672�J369A?@94�324�7:4�MA786@�A9<2326�F7A9?6�52�6@9�34D3;926�)@7474924A72�$A9?9AG9O��.+/0(+(�!"''&!(0g0(j1�(@9�=A7D9;6�3A93�5?�3�;A565;3:�:52P�52�6@9�F7A9?6�;7AA547A?�7F�l56?3=�!7E26Q�324�!@5;7�!A99P�8369A?@94C�8@5;@�;7229;6�:3AM9�=36;@9?�7F�BA99452M�324�F7A3M52M�@3B5636�324�;726A5BE69�67�5<=7A6326�=36@83Q?�F7A�85:4:5F9�<7G9<926�6@A7EM@�6@9�9265A9�l56?3=�$9252?E:3O��/&'&i0(,�*0,+*g+'(+f&*�!"##N1�+4D3;926�67�/A9<9A672�;56Q�:5<56?C�6@9�?569�=A7G549?�A9;A936572�324�236EA9�3;;9??�F7A�E249A?9AG94�EAB32�;7<<E25659?�324�6@9�F3<5:59?�7F�LICIII�h,�'3GQ�?35:7A?N�06�5?�A9ME:3A:Q�E?94�BQ�,EmE3<5?@�(A5B3:�<9<B9A?�F7A�M36@9A52M�6A34565723:�F774C�<945;529C�324�<369A53:?NO��$h/%0!�+!!&,,1�J56@�32�9>5?652M�nI-;3A�=3AP52M�:76C�UL�<5:9?�7F�=EB:5;:Q�7=92�6A35:?C�324�7G9A�nICIII�G5?567A?�322E3::QC�6@9�h9:324�(A99�i3A<�5?�3�6@A9369294�324�@5M@:Q�;@9A5?@94�=EB:5;�3;;9??�A9?7EA;9N�$A769;6572�87E:4�276�72:Q�=9A<32926:Q�=A769;6�3;;9??C�BE6�3:?7�B7:?69A�A9M5723:�6A35:�9FF7A6?NO��)&+*0'&,,�+'*�!+$+!0(j1�(@9�:3247829A�5?�@5M@:Q�<765G3694�67�87AP�856@�fA936�$9252?E:3�!72?9AG32;QC�8@5;@�5?�32�3;;A945694�:324�6AE?6�856@�3�@5?67AQ�7F�5<=:9<92652M�;72?9AG36572�=A7D9;6?N�#36;@�FE2452M�7F�oIp�85::�B9�=A7G5494�6@A7EM@�?6369�FE2452M�?7EA;9?�FA7<�<E:65=:9�=3A629A?�324�3M92;59?NO��,(&J+)*,.0$�!+$+!0(j1�+4D3;926�67�*')�fA992�#7E26352�,6369�i7A9?6C�6@9�?569�5?�;72G925926�F7A�<72567A52MN�fA936�$9252?E:3�!72?9AG32;Q�@3?�6@A99�FE::-65<9�?6983A4?@5=�?63FFC�3;65G9:Q�?6983A4?�<E:65=:9�293ABQ�;7<<E256Q�F7A9?6?�324�=A769;694�F7A9?6?C�324�;32�?E==7A6�6@9�?6369R?�?6983A4?@5=NO��qZ]r\sZbb &3?9<926�7A�i99�!72456572? U'72-i949A3:�!7?6�,@3A9�!7<<56<926 U,5M294�$EA;@3?9�+MA99<926 I(56:9�,93A;@ U#529A3:�*969A<5236572 UqZ]r\sZbb�tue]̂�t]̂̂v�X[udZ wXxYYude\sy�z]de\Zb'3G3:�/3?9�l56?3={�,EmE3<5?@�(A5B9{�l963�%9M3;Q�i7E2436572{�324�&G9AMA992�#7E26352�/5P9�+::532;9N



���������	


��������������������������� ������������������������������������������������	�� ������������������������������	��!"#$%!$�&#'"()%$&"#*+,--�*-./01- %23�*4567 )018�(..9:��������;������<����=���������>����������?@AB�CDEFGH�@FEIJKFLMNN�OPQFRFPQFPKF�BIFPSFT�U@VWXGYJPZHDPT�AV�[N[\N[N[][N\]L̂L_GKDHH̀GHFaXEHbSGQX̀ZDI ;������<����=���������>����������?@AB�CDEFGH�@FEIJKFL[[N�@W�UEQ�BIFcDEHdXPQT�ef�gh[NMN̂_][LU]\L[UXij̀GJPZYbSGQX̀ZDI >�����k������l������������m����n����k����WXGYJPZHDP�AFRXEHiFPH�Do�pXHSEXd�fFGDSEKFGc̀è�qDr�MhNLMLLLL�WXGYJPZHDP�@H�@sedjiRJXT�WB�g_\NM]hNLMÛN]gN[]LMN_iXEt̀EFFQbQPÈaX̀ZDI



����������

	
�������������������������� �
����������
������������������������������������������
���
���
����������������������



DocuSign Envelope ID: 79A90FAC-50DB-47A3-A875-964A7BF7BBFB 

Forest Health Advisory Committee Charter (Revised 2023) | Page 1 of 13 

FOREST HEALTH ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

CHARTER 

Approved November 2023 

I. BACKGROUND 

Forest health conditions in Washington State have been in decline for decades and the consequences of 

such conditions have contributed to uncharacteristically severe wildfires and a degradation in ecosystem 

functions. Wildfire risks have been high statewide, but are particularly acute in eastern Washington. 

Additional pressures on our forests across the state include insects, disease, drought, invasive species, and 

human development. Forest conditions are further affected by climate change, past management practices, 

and a lack of adequate active management. The result has been loss of valuable forest resources and forest 

ecosystems functions such as clean water, carbon sequestration, fish and wildlife habitat. Without 

significant intervention this trend will continue. 

With this in mind, the 2017 Legislature passed Senate Bill 5546 (codified in part at RCW 76.06.200) 

establishing a forest health advisory committee to assist the department in the development and 

implementation of a method ‘to proactively and systematically address the forest health issues facing the 

state’. The 2020 Legislature passed House Bill 1168, reinforcing the role of Forest Health Advisory 

Committee (FHAC) and providing further direction to guide agency engagement with the Committee. 

II. NAME 

This Charter refers to the Forest Health Advisory Committee as “the Committee.” 

III. AUTHORITY 

RCW 76.06.200(3)(b) creates a Forest Health Advisory Committee, passed into law during the legislative 

session of 2017. 

The Commissioner of Public Lands, Washington State Department of Natural Resources (DNR) charted 

the Committee. The Commissioner serves as the state of Washington's lead for all forest health issues 

under RCW 76.06.150(1). 

IV. MISSION 

Contribute to the improvement of forest health by providing guidance and advice to the Commissioner of 

Public Lands on forest health conditions and solutions thereby helping to make Washington forests, 

regardless of ownership, healthier and more resilient to insects, disease, invasive species, catastrophic 

wildfire, and other disturbance. Specifically, this committee helps to inform successful implementation of 

the 20-Year Forest Health Strategic Plan: Eastern Washington and Washington’s Forest Action Plan. 

V. VALUE STATEMENT 

The Forest Health Advisory Committee, through collaborative leadership, with input from constituent 

groups, strives to continually improve and maintain the health and resilience of Washington’s forests for 

current and future generations. 

 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 79A90FAC-50DB-47A3-A875-964A7BF7BBFB 

Forest Health Advisory Committee Charter (Revised 2023) | Page 2 of 13 

VI. DEFINITION 

RCW 76.06.020(6) establishes a definition of “forest health” to mean the condition of a forest being sound 

in ecological function, sustainable, resilient, and resistant to insects, disease, fire, and other disturbance, 

and having the capacity to meet landowner objectives. 

The 2020 Washington State Forest Action Plan further defines “forest health” as the condition of a forest 

ecosystem reflecting its ability to sustain characteristic structure, function and processes; resilience to fire, 

insects, and other disturbance mechanisms; adaptability to changing climate and increased drought stress; 

and capacity to provide ecosystem services to meet landowner objectives and human needs. 

VII. ORGANIZATION 

The Staff-Chair, Member-Chair, and committee members represent key groups or constituent entities who 

are determined as appropriate and appointed by the Commissioner. The Co-Chairs, and Committee members 

are supported by DNR staff in Forest Resilience Division as well as Executive Management with primary 

points of contact being the Forest Resilience Division Manager and designee of the Deputy Supervisor for 

Forest Resilience, Regulation, and Aquatic Resources. In addition, the DNR will provide administrative 

support providing a staff member to act as Secretary to the Committee. 

The Committee provides recommendations to and advises the Commissioner. 

The Committee may create Work Groups and Technical Subcommittees, including the creation of Joint 

Work Groups in partnership with other DNR advisory groups, as necessary in order to further explore, 

develop or address a specific issue or task. These forums shall be established and guided through the use of a 

Tasking Memo (Appendix D), approved by the full committee. These Work Groups and Technical 

Subcommittees will sunset upon completion of their assignment or the project. 

The Committee’s calendar of work and operations shall be maintained through the FHAC Annual Work 

Plan, revisited and updated as needed throughout a given year. 

VIII. COMPOSITION 

The Committee is composed of members representing specified groups or constituents defined in RCW 

76.06.200(3)(b), or as deemed appropriate by the Commissioner and includes the following: 

A. Committee Officers 

The Committee officers shall be the Staff-Chair, Member-Chair, and Secretary.  The Member-Chair 

is elected from within the committee membership and shall serve a term of one year. The 

Department of Natural Resources administrative support representative shall serve as the Secretary 

of the Committee. 

B. Committee Members 

The Committee will seek to ensure that a balance of geographic representation is achieved in 

recruiting and nominating members for appointment by the Commissioner.  The committee may 

include, but is not limited to the following members, and all committee members shall strive to 

represent the viewpoints of the constituent groups and organizations that they represent. 

Committee membership shall include representation from the following constituent groups, while 

not exceeding twenty five (25) members, including: 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 79A90FAC-50DB-47A3-A875-964A7BF7BBFB 

Forest Health Advisory Committee Charter (Revised 2023) | Page 3 of 13 

• The Director of State and Private Forestry with US Forest Service Region 6 or their designee. 

• The Director of Conservation for the Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife or the 

director’s designee. 

• The Lead Agency Forester with Washington State Parks or their designee. 

• The Executive Director of Washington State Conservation Commission or their designee, 

representing the interests of Conservation Districts. 

• The Director of Policy with the Washington Association of Counties, or their designee, 

representing the interests of county and local governments. 

• At least three (3) members representing Washington Tribes.   

• Three (3) members representing Forest Collaboratives. 

• Two (2) members representing environmental groups with an interest in forest health, forest 

management, and landscape resilience. 

• One (1) member representing forest conservation with an interest in supporting the 

preservation and maintenance of forestland and working forest, including preventing the 

conversion of forest land to non-forest land. 

• Two (2) members representing Small Forest Landowners.  

• Two (2) member representing Large Private Industrial Landowners.  

• Two (2) members representing Logging, Milling, and Log Transportation. 

• One (1) member representing Wildland Fire Response Organizations. 

• One (1) member of the general public representing community level interests as they relate to 

community wildfire preparedness, forest health and/or forest conservation, environmental 

justice, or human health associated with forest management, smoke, and/or wildfire. 

• One (1) member representing academic institutions or academic partners. 

• Other interested parties deemed appropriate by the Commissioner. 

Current membership can be found in Appendix A, and is updated annually and as changes occur. 

C. Strategic Partners 

The Commissioner may appoint additional members to the Committee when the Commissioner 

determines it is appropriate to assist in developing and implementing the Committee’s mission. 

Additional subject matter expertise may be utilized when it will further the Committee’s knowledge 

or understanding of a specific topic. 

D. Work Group and Technical Subcommittee Membership 

Work Groups and Technical Subcommittees shall be chaired by existing members of the Committee, 

with direct support from DNR staff. 

As appropriate, additional members or subject matter experts may be nominated to serve on 

Committee Work Groups or Technical Subcommittees, while not serving as appointed members of 

the Forest Health Advisory Committee as a whole. Work Group and Technical Subcommittee 

members may be solicited from among Committee member organizations, or additional external 

strategic partners and will serve for the duration of that work group. 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 79A90FAC-50DB-47A3-A875-964A7BF7BBFB 

Forest Health Advisory Committee Charter (Revised 2023) | Page 4 of 13 

IX. NOMINATIONS & TERMS 

A. Term Length 

For all committee appointments, excluding the five (5) standing organizational designee committee 

positions, initial appointment nominations in 2023 shall indicate a preference for either a two (2), 

three (3), or four (4) year term to ensure continuity of leadership upon term expiration. Thereafter, 

each member shall be appointed for a term of three (3) years. Vacancies on the Committee shall be 

filled in the same manner as the original appointments. 

B. Term Limits 

For all committee appointments, excluding the five (5) standing organizational designee committee 

positions, members are eligible for re-appointment following each three year term. Other than those 

representing a designated agency described, members are limited to serving no more than two (2) 

consecutive terms. An exception to the two-term rule may be granted at the discretion of the 

Commissioner.  

C. Member-Chair Election Process 

The Member-Chair shall be elected from the Committee by majority vote at the winter Committee 

meeting of each year. Candidates for the Member-Chair position will be nominated at the fall 

Committee meeting of each year and will assume the role and duties immediately following the 

winter meeting.  

D. Staff Chair Representation 

The Staff Chair shall be selected, on a rotational basis, from among the Forest Resilience Division’s 

Assistant Division Managers to support diverse leadership representation from the Division’s 

portfolio of programs. Assistant Division Managers shall rotate after serving two consecutive 

quarterly meetings. During the transition of Staff Chair, the Forest Resilience Division Manager and 

designee of the Deputy Supervisor for Forest Resilience, Regulations, and Aquatic Resources shall 

provide consistent and stable facilitation support and assistance. 

E. Committee Membership Nomination Process 

Nominations shall be solicited annually each spring, utilizing DNR’s normal methods for 

communication including a DNR press release, appropriate list serves, and social media. DNR shall 

strive to confirm appointments to ensure participation of new members at the fall Committee 

meeting. Interested applicants shall be directed to DNR’s Boards and Commissions website to 

complete a general board application and a FHAC-specific Membership. The general application 

portal will be open to members of the public year-round. 

F. Committee Membership Nomination Evaluation Process 

The FHAC Nominations Subcommittee shall be responsible for supporting DNR’s Boards and 

Commission’s Manager in the routine solicitation of new members. 

New member applications shall be received by DNR’s Boards and Commissions Manager and 

provided to the FHAC Nominations Subcommittee.  

Subcommittee composition shall be selected by the FHAC and shall include at least 4 FHAC 

members in good standing from at least three constituent categories, DNR’s Boards and 

Commissions Manager, and at least one member of the Forest Resilience Division staff. 

The Subcommittee shall be responsible for the following: 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 79A90FAC-50DB-47A3-A875-964A7BF7BBFB 

Forest Health Advisory Committee Charter (Revised 2023) | Page 5 of 13 

• Evaluation of current Committee composition, including existing representation, skillsets, and 

strengths to illuminate areas of representation and skillset that may be necessary to achieve 

equity and forward the mission of FHAC;  

• Active promotion of vacancies and outreach for new members; 

• Provide recommendations for possible areas of emphasis or thinking to the Boards and 

Commissions Manager, who is ultimately responsible for building the list for consideration by 

the Commissioner; 

• Recommend, if needed, an extension of the nomination and recruitment process to address any 

seats that may remain vacant after the nomination period due to a lack of interest or 

applications received;  

• Review of all applications for membership; 

• Drafting of a process memo that addresses: (1) current committee vacancies, (2) deficiencies, 

challenges, or opportunities in the new member recruitment process, and (3) final 

recommendations regarding nominees. 

The Subcommittee shall convene at least two weeks prior to solicitation to evaluate Committee 

needs, and shall reconvene one week after the nomination process closes to review applications.  

Final recommendations shall be provided, via the FHAC Member-Chair, to the DNR Boards and 

Commissions Manager no more than 45 days after the nomination process concludes. 

X. RESPONSIBILITIES 

A. Staff- Chair 

• Provides leadership for the Committee. Includes assigning the Committees’ work, monitoring 

assignments, and guidance to annual planning. 

• Facilitates Committee meetings as Chair and the establishment and coordination of work groups 

and technical subcommittees as they are deemed necessary; moves business actions forward. 

• As needed, facilitate consultation between the Committee and relevant local, state and federal 

agencies and tribes and other interested parties. 

• Maintains the FHAC Annual Work Plan (Attachment B) 

• Develops and drafts meeting agendas (Attachment C) and identifies key meeting objectives. 

• Conducts outreach to committee members to coordinate the development of recommendations 

and committee work plans, in coordination with the Member-Chair. 

B. Member-Chair 

• Delivers recommendations in the form of written and oral communications on behalf of the 

Committee to the Commissioner; serves as the primary spokesperson and voice of the 

Committee when presenting recommendations to the Commissioner. 

• Supports the Staff-Chair in providing leadership for the Committee.  

• Assists the Staff-Chair in developing meeting agendas and the Committee’s calendar of work. 

• Executes the duties of Staff-Chair in their absence, with direct support from DNR Staff. 

C. Committee Secretary 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 79A90FAC-50DB-47A3-A875-964A7BF7BBFB 

Forest Health Advisory Committee Charter (Revised 2023) | Page 6 of 13 

• Maintains records of attendance and business conducted at all Committee meetings.  

• Make arrangements for Committee meetings.  

• Supports the Staff-Chair in the drafting of FHAC agendas and in maintaining the annual 

Calendar of Work. 

• Collates, distributes and posts official meeting packets at least two weeks prior to each standing 

meeting and at least 48 hours prior to each special/emergency meeting. 

• Present in writing minutes of previous meetings to members and the public  

D. Committee Staff Support 

• Coordinating directly with Committee Chairs, develops and plans meeting agendas and 

identifies key meeting objectives. 

• Conducts outreach to committee members to coordinate the development of recommendations 

and support delivery of committee annual plan. 

E. Committee Members 

• Support the Committee’s communications and interactions to advise the Commissioner on 

matters relating to forest health conditions in the state. 

• Keep apprised of trends and conditions influencing the health of Washington’s forests. 

• Identify and/or review recommendations for best management practices to improve or sustain 

forest health; advise on processes and programs to facilitate development of physical, economic 

and human infrastructure necessary to establish a sustainable, long-term forest health program. 

• Provide creative and proactive solutions to ensure long-term success of the Committee’s 

mission; work to thoroughly understand the context and specifics of an issue and consider a 

range of alternatives when developing recommendations. 

• Provide input and recommendations for the assessment and treatment framework developed 

pursuant to RCW 76.06.200, and the report by the Department described below. 

• Monitor the implementation and effectiveness of the treatments outlined in the department’s 

Assessment and Treatment Framework and Forest Health Tracker. 

• Assist with review of periodic revisions to the 20-Year Forest Health Strategic Plan: Eastern 

Washington and State Forest Action Plan. 

• Report Committee activities and dissemination information to constituents and organizations. 

• Other duties related to forest health issues in the state as requested by the Commissioner. 

F. The Department 

• By December 1 of each even-numbered year, the Commissioner (with Committee input) will 

provide a written report to the appropriate committees of the legislature and OFM on the 

department’s progress in implementing the assessment and treatment framework contained in 

RCW 76.06.200 and relation to the department’s 20-Year Forest Health Strategic Plan: Eastern 

Washington. The report will include: 

o Recommended barriers to be addressed and alternative strategies to more effectively 

implement the framework and achieve the treatment goals; 

o An analysis of necessary funding to develop and implement the framework and treatment 

recommendations in the following biennium; 

o Costs and outcomes of treatments carried out in the preceding biennium; 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 79A90FAC-50DB-47A3-A875-964A7BF7BBFB 

Forest Health Advisory Committee Charter (Revised 2023) | Page 7 of 13 

o The current condition of Washington’s forests. The report will include any potential 

threats to forest landscapes and the nature, extent, and location of these threats, and 

recommend strategies to address them. 

• Develop and implement assessment and treatment framework described in RCW 76.06.200, and 

as incorporated in the department’s 20-Year Forest Health Strategic Plan: Eastern Washington. 

• Provide staff support for relevant Technical Sub-committees and Workgroups. 

• Lead a review in collaboration with the Committee of the charter every 2 years at the start of a 

new state biennium, and revise as necessary. 

• Keep members apprised of and identify opportunities to partner and/or work in concert with the 

following organizations and committees when in alignment: 

o WADNR Wildland Fire Advisory Committee (WFAC) 

o WA Prescribed Fire Council 

o WA Fire Adapted Community Learning Network 

o WADNR Community Forestry Council (WCFC) 

o WADNR Forest Stewardship Committee 

XI. MEETINGS AND GUIDELINES 

A. Meetings/Conference Calls 

• The Committee will meet at the call of the staff-chair, but will typically meet quarterly. 

• Efforts will be made to provide phone or video conferencing for the meeting and comply with 

the Washington Open Public Meetings Act (RCW 42.30). 

B. Operating Guidelines 

• The Committee serves under RCW 76.06.200(3)(b) and advises the Commissioner. 

• The Committee will not be operational, set policy, or function as a political arm of the agency. 

• Committee meeting operations will be governed by Roberts Rules of Order. 

• The Committee will endeavor to make recommendations through consensus. If consensus cannot 

be achieved, a simple majority will rule with any dissent documented in meeting notes. 

• The Department will provide Committee members a minimum of 15 days advance notice of 

meeting place, date, time, and agenda. All effort will be made to provide materials at least five 

days prior to the meeting. 

• The Department will provide note-taking capabilities: 

o Summary notes of committee meetings will record attendance, Committee actions and 

work assignments. 

o Summaries of previous meetings will be reviewed, amended (as necessary) and approved 

by the Committee. 

o Meeting preparation may require outside reading or research prior to the meeting. 

• Each Committee member is selected for specific talents or credentials. Alternates may attend 

committee meetings, as the subject matter requires, and with prior communication with the 

Committee Co-Chairs. 

• If the attendance of a committee member is not possible, prior notification to the Committee 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 79A90FAC-50DB-47A3-A875-964A7BF7BBFB 

Forest Health Advisory Committee Charter (Revised 2023) | Page 8 of 13 

Chair or Coordinator is appreciated. 

• The state committee meetings will include presentations from partner agencies and 

organizations. Content will be determined by expressed interest by committee members that 

request or offer relevant presentations. 

• The Staff-Chair will solicit recommendations for New Business to be included for consideration 

on the agenda of the next meeting. 

• The committee will strive to host periodic meetings that are field based to encourage 

relationship learning, building, and innovation. 

XII. COMPENSATION 

In 2021 the Washington Legislature passed Senate Bill 5793 which works to reduce barriers for low-income 

individuals and community members with lived experience to participate in the state’s critical task forces and 

workgroups. Under what is now RCW 43.03.220, any part-time board, commission, Committee, committee or 

other similar group established by the agency in an advisory, coordinating, or planning capacity function as a 

Class One Group, which allows stipend compensation to be provided to members that meet specific criteria.  

Subject to available funding, the DNR may provide a stipend to individuals who are low income or who have 

lived experience to support their participation in the group to ensure principles of equity are achieved.  

The FHAC shall follow any current or new guidelines issued by the DNR to ensure equity among all advisory 

boards, committees, and commissions. Requests for compensation evaluation shall be directed to DNR’s 

Office of Equity and Environmental Justice and shall be evaluated and granted independent of the FHAC. 

XIII. APPROVAL 

This Charter is effective as of the date of approval by the Boards and Commissions Manager and the 

Commissioner of Public Lands. 

 

 

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.03.220


DocuSign Envelope ID: 79A90FAC-50DB-47A3-A875-964A7BF7BBFB 

Forest Health Advisory Committee Charter (Revised 2023) | Page 9 of 13 

Appendix A. Forest Health Advisory Committee Membership 

Current membership of the Forest Health Advisory Committee, as of October 1, 2023 is as follows: 

NAME CONSTITUENT GROUP AFFILIATION CONTACT INFORMATION 

Josh Anderson Milling and Log Transportation Vaagen Brothers janderson@vaagenbros.com 

Kevin Arneson Milling and Log Transportation Boise Cascade kevinarneson@bc.com 

Darcy Batura Conservation  The Nature Conservancy darcy.batura@tnc.org  

Jerry Bonagofski Industrial Harvest WA Contract Loggers Association jerryb@loggers.com 

Chris Branch Forest Health Collaborative North Central WA Forest Health Collaborative cbranch@co.okanogan.wa.us 

David Cass State Agency - Parks WA State Parks David.Cass@parks.wa.gov 

Matt Comisky Industrial Harvest American Forest Resource Committee mcomisky@amforest.org 

Chad Davis Federal Agency US Forest Service, Region 6 chad.davis2@usda.gov  

Cody Desautel Washington Tribes (eastern) Confederated Tribes of Colville Nation cody.desautel@colvilletribes.com 

Travis Dutton County and Local Government WA Association of Counties  tdutton@wsac.org 

Dr. Paul Hessburg Academic Partner Forest Researcher, PNW Research Station phessburg@fs.fed.us 

Shana Joy State Agency – SCC WA State Conservation Commission SJoy@scc.wa.gov 

Cynthia 

Wilkerson 

State Agency - DFW 

WA Department of Fish and Wildlife Cynthia.Wilkerson@dfw.wa.gov  

Tiana Luke Conservation  The Wilderness Society tiana_luke@tws.org 

Elaine O’Neil Small Forest Landowners WA Farm Forestry eoneil@wafarmforestry.com 

Janene Ritchie Forest Health Collaborative Pinchot Partners admin@pinchotpartners.org 

Jay McLaughlin 

Forest Health Collaborative Mount Adams Resource Stewards/South 

Gifford Pinchot Collaborative jay@mtadamsstewards.org. 

Jim Walkowski Wildland Fire Response WA Fire Chiefs Association jwalkowski@scfd9.org 

Dave Werntz Conservation  Conservation Northwest dwerntz@conservationnw.org  

Lori Reynaud FHAC Secretary WA Department of Natural Resources Lori.Reynaud@dnr.wa.gov  

Katie Allen  Deputy Supervisor of Forest Regulation, 

Resilience, and Aquatics (Staff Support) 

WA Department of Natural Resources katie.allen2@dnr.wa.gov 

Jennifer Watkins 

Forest Resilience Division Manager (Staff 

Support) WA Department of Natural Resources Jennifer.Watkins@dnr.wa.gov  

mailto:janderson@vaagenbros.com
mailto:kevinarneson@bc.com
mailto:darcy.batura@tnc.org
mailto:jerryb@loggers.com
mailto:cbranch@co.okanogan.wa.us
mailto:David.Cass@parks.wa.gov
mailto:mcomisky@amforest.org
mailto:chad.davis2@usda.gov
mailto:cody.desautel@colvilletribes.com
mailto:tdutton@wsac.org
mailto:phessburg@fs.fed.us
mailto:SJoy@scc.wa.gov
mailto:Cynthia.Wilkerson@dfw.wa.gov
mailto:tiana_luke@tws.org
mailto:dwerntz@conservationnw.org
mailto:Lori.Reynaud@dnr.wa.gov
mailto:Jennifer.Watkins@dnr.wa.gov


DocuSign Envelope ID: 79A90FAC-50DB-47A3-A875-964A7BF7BBFB 

Forest Health Advisory Committee Charter (Revised 2023) | Page 10 of 13 

 

Appendix B. Forest Health Advisory Committee LIVING Annual Plan template 

2023 Living Work Plan 
 SPRING - FEBRUARY SUMMER - MAY FALL - SEPTEMBER WINTER - DECEMBER 

R
eg

u
la

r 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 

Standing Business: 

 Review & approve prior meeting 

summary 

 New Member Welcome 

 Annual Work Plan Review 

 

Action Items: 

 EJ Work Group Recommendations 

 

Discussions: 

 FHAC Charter Revisions 

 WWA Landscape Eval Pilot 

 

Presentations: 

 Community Wildfire Defense 

Grants 

 HB 1168 Joint Workgroup update 

 Leg update: Cascading impacts of 

wildfire  

 

Placeholder for 2024 

 State Forester update 

 FR Program updates: Insects & 

Disease, Community Resilience 

Standing Business: 

 Review & approve prior meeting 

summary 

 

Action Items: 

 QWRA Joint Workgroup 

recommendations 

 Environmental Justice draft 

recommendations 

 FHAC Charter revisions 

 WWA Forest Resilience Strategic 

Planning workgroup Tasking 

 

Discussions: 

 [ ] 

 

Presentations: 

 Deputy Supervisor/DNR update 

 Monitoring WG update 

 FR Program updates: Rx Fire, 

Certified Burner Program, and 

Post-Fire Recovery 

 

Standing Business: 

 Review & approve prior meeting 

summary 

 Member-Chair Nominations 

 FHAC Charter revisions update 

 

Action Items: 

  [ ] 

 

Discussions: 

 [ ] 

 

Presentations: 

 State Forester update 

 Decision Package/Budget update 

 FR Program updates: Service 

Forestry, UCF, and GNA 

 

Standing Business: 

 Review & approve prior meeting 

summary 

 Member-Chair Elections 

 

Action Items: 

 [ ] 

 

Discussions: 

 [ ] 

 

Presentations: 

 Deputy Supervisor/DNR update 

 FR Program updates: FH 

Planning, FH& Fire Science, and 

Federal Lands NEPA 

 

 

W
o

rk
 

G
ro

u
p

s Jan-Feb: HB 1168 Account Joint 

Workgroup 

 

Quarterly: Monitoring Workgroup  

Quarterly: Monitoring Workgroup May-Dec: WWA Forest Resilience 

Strategic Planning Workgroup 

 

Quarterly: Monitoring Workgroup 

May-Dec: WWA Forest Resilience 

Strategic Planning Workgroup 

 

Quarterly: Monitoring Workgroup 

S
p

ec
ia

l 

M
ee

ti
n

g
 March 16, 2023:  

 HB 1168 Workgroup 

Recommendations 

 QWRA Joint Workgroup Tasking 

 Pending date: 

FHAC Charter Revision Approval 

 

 Updated 5.16.2023 
 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 79A90FAC-50DB-47A3-A875-964A7BF7BBFB 

Forest Health Advisory Committee Charter (Revised 2023) | Page 11 of 13 

Appendix C. FHAC Meeting Agenda Template - Annotated 
 

WASHINGTON DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 

FOREST HEALTH ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

Quarterly Committee Meeting 
Tuesday, [DATE] 

9:00 am to 1:00 pm 

 

Join Zoom Meeting  

[LINK] 

 

Meeting ID: [ID] |  Passcode: forests 

One Tap Mobile: [One-Tap Number]  |  Dial by Location: [Direct-Dial Number]   

Find your local number: [LINK] 

 

Meeting Agenda 
All times are estimates to assist in scheduling and may be changed subject to the business of the day and at the Staff-

Chair’s discretion. The meetings will be recorded.  

 

Public Comment: To participate in public comment please RSVP to Lori.Reynaud@dnr.wa.gov no later than 5:00 pm 

on Monday, [DATE PRIOR]. Public comment shall be limited to 5 minutes per person – time may be shortened if 

needed to accommodate all interested parties. 

 

TIME BUSINESS MATERIALS 

9:00 AM Call to Order – [NAME], FHAC Chair  

5-10 

minutes 
Approval of Quarterly Meeting Summary 

Action Item: Consider approval of [DATE] meeting summary 

Review prior meeting summary. Accept corrections, move to approve.  

[DATE] Summary 

 

10-20 min Forest Resilience Division Update – Jen Watkins (DNR)  

Work with Division Manager to identify Division level updates. 

 

5-15 min Deputy Supervisor / State Forester Update – [NAME], [TITLE] 

Alternate based on master schedule.  

 

5 min or 

less per 

comment 

Public Comment on FHAC Action Items 

Work with Secretary to identify if requests for public comment have been made. 

Covers all Action Items. Written comments may be accepted and included in the 

meeting summary. 

 

20-30 min 

per Action 

item 

Action item title – Presenter name, affiliation 

Action Item: [describe the general motion or decision being requested] 

Begin with a brief presentation or recap, review recommendation or action 

being requested, then open the floor with a motion to accept the 

recommendation. Once motion is on the floor, discussion regarding the 

recommendation or action can occur – accept revision motions as needed, then 

take a final vote. Create a new Table Row for each Action Item.  

Include in the packet the 

accompanying memo and 

any background information. 

List each item here. 

15 min per 

item 

Presentation or Discussion item title – Presenter name(s), 

affiliation(s) 

Often, presentations will occur for collective learning on a forest health topic or 

the meeting prior to an action taking place to provide adequate time for 

stakeholders to conduct independent consultation.  

If this is a Discussion Item, list the preliminary discussion questions to ensure 

members are prepared to contribute. 

Include any printed material 

or background information 

in the packet and list here. 

5-10 min Staff and Subcommittee Reports (5-10 min each)  

mailto:Lori.Reynaud@dnr.wa.gov


DocuSign Envelope ID: 79A90FAC-50DB-47A3-A875-964A7BF7BBFB 

Forest Health Advisory Committee Charter (Revised 2023) | Page 12 of 13 

each  [GROUP NAME] 

This section is for brief standing updates, such as workgroup updates or other 

general Forest Resilience program updates. 

10-15 min BREAK 

Provide about halfway through the meeting.  

 

1:00 PM Adjourn 

Adjourning the meeting is an official business action. Provide any final Chair 

comments, then request a motion to adjourn. 

 

 

 

 

 
Future FHAC Meetings 

Regular Meetings:  Quarterly - February, May, September and December 

Special Meetings:   
Rotational Updates:  Specific occurrences subject to change 

DNR Leadership:  State Forester - February & September; Deputy Supervisor – May & December 

DNR Programs:  Federal Lands, Post-fire Recovery, Prescribed Fire, Service Forestry, Strategic Science & Planning,  

Urban and Community Forestry 

 Partners:  Organizations and topics to be identified in meeting agenda preparation 

Check the FHAC Website for latest information: http://www.dnr.wa.gov/ForestHealthAdvisoryCmte 

Contact Committee Secretary: Lori Reynaud (Lori.Reynaud@dnr.wa.gov) 

 

  

http://www.dnr.wa.gov/ForestHealthAdvisoryCmte
mailto:Lori.Reynaud@dnr.wa.gov


DocuSign Envelope ID: 79A90FAC-50DB-47A3-A875-964A7BF7BBFB 

Forest Health Advisory Committee Charter (Revised 2023) | Page 13 of 13 

Appendix D. FHAC Tasking Memo Template 
 

To: [NAME], Staff-Chair, Forest Health Advisory Committee (FHAC) 

[NAME], Member-Chair, Forest Health Advisory Committee (FHAC) 

CC: FHAC Committee Members  

List relevant leadership contacts that should be made aware of the tasking. Often includes the 

Division Manager and Strategic Advisor 

From: Source of tasking memo – often this is the Deputy Supervisor, Division Manager, or Commissioner 

Date: [DATE ISSUED] 

Subject: Tasking Memo for [PURPOSE] 

Attachments: List any relevant attachments 

 

Title:  [Name of the Workgroup] 

 

Requested By: [Name, title, and affiliation of person(s) requesting the task] 

 

Task Leaders: [DNR STAFF LEAD – this is the individual who is responsible for convening the work group, 

managing the schedule, and ensuring the products are completed by the workgroup in a timely manner.] 

 

1. Overview: Specific topics of the Forest Health Advisory Committee (FHAC) may benefit from more focused, 

small group discussion. A Work Group is proposed to complete [Describe Task]. The purpose of this document 

is to provide an overview of the objectives, work products, and timeline for the Work Group. Any work 

products, recommendations, or other input will be communicated to the full FHAC for approval before being 

finalized for review by the Commissioner of Public Lands and the Washington Department of Natural Resources 

(DNR) leadership. 

2. Intent: The intent of this task is to engage the FHAC to provide recommendations to [WHO] concerning 

[WHAT]. 

3. Background: See [Relevant attachment with background information] 

4. Purpose: [Describe the purpose behind engaging the FHAC on the specific topic of interest. List the specific 

actions being requested.] 

5. Task Description: [Very specifically, list the expected work of the Workgroup, any sequencing required, and 

the specific deliverables or suit of recommendations to be produced.] 

6. Timeline: [clearly identify the timeline for workgroup operations. Include any major milestones that need to be 

accomplished] 

7. Assigned to: For consideration by the full FHAC, with specific elements of the task and first draft deliverables 

to be completed by the assigned Work Group. The entire FHAC shall be included in making key decisions and 

approval of final products. 

8. Work Group Composition and Expectations: The Work Group shall be comprised of [WHO – members of 

the FHAC? Other experts? Specific Stakeholder groups? Identify the categories of representation.], with initial 

solicitation occurring at the [MEETING DATE]; requests to participate are due no later than [DEADLINE]. The 

Work Group shall convene with an introductory meeting on [DATE] with a frequency of [MEETING 

FREQUENCY]. 

9. Products to be generated: [WHAT specifically is the Work Group being asked to produce? Often it is a report 

or memo providing analysis and recommendations on the identified topic.] 

10. Final Disposition: [WHO will receive the final product once approved by FHAC and HOW will the final 

product be used.]. 

11. Due Date: [DATE of final product deadline – at least 2 ½ weeks prior to the FHAC meeting in which 

consideration by the full committee will occur]; [DATE of any interim products or deadlines] 



20-Year Forest Health Strategic Plan: Eastern Washington 

Treatment Tracking Progress Memo – October 2023 

Adopted in 2017, goal 1 of the 20-Year Forest Health Strategic Plan commits to conduct 1.25 million acres of 

scientifically sound, landscape-scale, cross-boundary management and restoration treatments in priority landscapes to 

increase forest and watershed resilience by 2037.  There are 47 current priority landscapes (also often referred to as 

priority planning areas) with new areas considered biennially for addition. RCW 76.06.200 directs DNR to establish a 

forest health assessment and treatment framework designed to proactively and systematically address the forest 

health issues facing the state.   

A treatment is defined as an action taken in a forest ecosystem aimed to improve forest health and resilience. 

Treatments may include activities where improving forest health is one of multiple objectives.  Treatments are 

voluntarily reported by land managers responsible for their implementation; interpretation of projects that meet this 

definition is the responsibility of the individual or organization submitting information. For treatment tracking, DNR 

compiles and summarizes forest health treatments from multiple data sources into common categories. DNR strives 

to work with each reporting entity to classify activities correctly and revises our methods as necessary.  More detail 

and definitions on the current categories can be found here. 

 

DNR reports treatment data in two ways: 

• Total treatment acres track every forest health treatment conducted, including those that occurred in 

sequence on the same acre over time. For example, a commercial thinning may have been conducted on an 

acre prior to a prescribed burn and both treatments would be reflected. Total acres track individual 

actions invested in and implemented at a point in time. 

• Footprint acres are calculated through spatial analysis to ensure one acre that experienced one or more 

treatments is only counted once. Footprint acres track the spatial scale of management impact over time. 

As of October 31, 2023, landowners have reported 605,862 acres of forest health treatments completed across 

eastern Washington since 2017 when the 20-Year Forest Health Strategic Plan was adopted; impacting a total of 

350,714 footprint acres.   

This memo presents this data in tables with the following updates from previous versions: 

• Table 2 details reported treatments (January 2017 – October 31, 2023) as well as remotely-sensed forest 

structure change from active management and low-mixed severity wildfires (2017 – 2022), alongside the 

assessed treatment need in each priority landscape. Remotely-detected data, also known as change 

detection analysis, is intended as a complement to treatment tracking by capturing additional landscape 

impacts at stand and landscape scales. Change detection analysis is composed of satellite-based change 

detection and attribution followed by evaluation of forest structure changes using Digital Aerial 

Photogrammetry data. DNR distinguishes annual disturbances, including wildfires, insect activity from active 

management (regeneration harvest, thinning, and broadcast and pile burning) in the data analysis.  It is 

expected that these two data sets will overlap but differ in acreage reported. Change detection in always 

one year delayed and will detect active management acres that are not reported to DNR as in our treatment 

tracking.  Change detection may miss understory treatments which do not change the structure as seen 

from above significantly. The pairing of self-reported treatment tracking and change detection products 

allow for a more holistic view of landscape change and how disturbances combine to move landscapes 

relative to restoration goals. 

• In working with our Forest Health Advisory Committee Monitoring Workgroup, a new table provides a 

detailed breakdown of treatment activities within our treat type categories (see Table 4).  A crosswalk and 

definitions are available for reference on Box to aid with interpretation. 

As provided by participating partners, additional activity details are available via the spatial data DNR maintains available 

on DNR’s GIS Open Data Portal and Forest Health Tracker. Treatment tracking is one component of DNR’s 20-Year 

Forest Health Strategic Plan Monitoring Framework. This summary provides data as pulled on October 31, 2023. Data 

will be updated again in spring 2024. 

https://www.dnr.wa.gov/publications/rp_forest_health_20_year_strategic_plan.pdf
https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=76.06.200
https://deptofnaturalresources.box.com/s/vo0xblkiqu1rmtjlrt5sbiwsrbpln1k1
https://deptofnaturalresources.box.com/s/vo0xblkiqu1rmtjlrt5sbiwsrbpln1k1
https://data-wadnr.opendata.arcgis.com/datasets/wadnr::completed-forest-health-treatments-2017-october-31st-2023-eastern-wa/explore
https://foresthealthtracker.dnr.wa.gov/
https://deptofnaturalresources.app.box.com/s/ejg0hx8l9n6uj5bfeocwd9km0qwme4eg/file/748756906110
https://deptofnaturalresources.app.box.com/s/ejg0hx8l9n6uj5bfeocwd9km0qwme4eg/file/748756906110
https://deptofnaturalresources.app.box.com/s/ejg0hx8l9n6uj5bfeocwd9km0qwme4eg/file/748756906110


Table 1. Total forest health treatment acres in eastern Washington as reported to DNR by Calendar Year 

(January 2017 – end of October 2023), organized by lead implementer and forest health treatment type 

(commercial vegetation, non-commercial vegetation, and prescribed fire). 

 
 

*Discrepancies between current and previous annual acreage reporting for DNR State Trust Lands due to data field updates differentiating 
completed treatments from treatments where the contract is successfully bid but not complete. 
*NRCS only provides tabular data, spatial data is not available due to privacy restrictions. 
*Variation due to how organizations track the acreage associated with pile burning treatments. Some organizations count the # of piles and 
acreage of soil impacted from the burn, while others count the contributing acres of the unit where pile material was sourced. 
*Acres are rounded to whole numbers in each data field; minor acre discrepancies between tables due to rounding and query process. 
*Other NGO’s represents data submitted by multiple non-profit organizations, where they were the lead implementation partner and/or 
landowner. 

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Grand Total

DNR State Trust Lands 16,907 25,464 15,203 25,088 22,309 21,387 17,025 143,382

Commercial Vegetation 6,833 7,004 5,652 6,096 5,434 9,571 5,468 46,057

Non-Commercial Vegetation 9,232 16,091 7,009 16,747 14,173 11,027 10,814 85,091

Prescribed Fire 842 2,370 2,542 2,245 2,703 789 743 12,234

State Parks 71 252 1,461 446 169 595 906 3,900

Commercial Vegetation 62 97 415 625 1,198

Non-Commercial Vegetation 9 155 1,461 369 169 161 68 2,393

Prescribed Fire 77 20 213 309

WDFW 5,170 4,331 4,857 1,424 1,128 1,979 1,029 19,918

Commercial Vegetation 1,931 1,538 521 394 143 1,426 5,954

Non-Commercial Vegetation 466 408 3,617 1,001 430 548 864 7,334

Prescribed Fire 2,773 2,385 718 29 555 5 164 6,631

USFS 38,384 55,814 50,142 46,977 41,902 46,636 38,089 317,945

Commercial Vegetation 6,285 6,100 6,773 7,739 5,216 2,366 3,511 37,990

Non-Commercial Vegetation 15,142 18,390 19,690 28,485 19,625 35,115 30,047 166,494

Prescribed Fire 16,957 31,324 23,679 10,753 17,061 9,156 4,530 113,461

USFWS 549 779 1,041 2,344 1,336 1,206 7,258

Commercial Vegetation 493 572 1,065

Non-Commercial Vegetation 26 105 1,090 730 375 2,327

Prescribed Fire 549 753 444 682 606 831 3,866

NRCS 4,285 5,491 5,671 6,372 2,827 11,522 36,168

Non-Commercial Vegetation 4,285 5,491 5,671 6,372 2,827 11,522 36,168

Kalispel Tribe of Indians 82 97 103 116 166 563

Commercial Vegetation 82 97 103 116 119 517

Non-Commercial Vegetation 47 47

Colville Confederated Tribes 7,191 8,231 7,030 4,113 9,881 4,976 41,422

Commercial Vegetation 178 1,089 790 177 1,622 3,855

Non-Commercial Vegetation 7,013 7,143 6,240 3,935 8,259 4,976 37,567

DNR Service Forestry 2,724 3,175 4,252 5,434 4,577 5,160 5,791 31,112

Non-Commercial Vegetation 2,724 3,175 4,252 5,434 4,577 5,131 5,787 31,079

Prescribed Fire 29 4 33

BLM 223 369 592

Commercial Vegetation 223 369 592

Other NGOs 331 53 123 471 414 615 804 2,811

Commercial Vegetation 252 230 482

Non-Commercial Vegetation 79 123 471 320 508 418 1,920

Prescribed Fire 53 95 107 156 410

Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian 

Reservation 41 29 266 207 12 555

Commercial Vegetation 41 237 12 290

Non-Commercial Vegetation 29 191 219

Prescribed Fire 29 17 45

WACC 115 21 72 3 14 12 236

Non-Commercial Vegetation 115 21 72 3 14 12 236

Grand Total 75,808 103,709 89,997 92,815 85,212 94,654 63,667 605,862



Table 2. Acres of assessed forest health treatment need alongside reported completed treatments (January 

2017 – October 31, 2023) and remotely-detected forest structure change from active management and low-mixed 

severity wildfire (2017 - 2022) by 20-Year Forest Health Strategic Plan priority landscape. 

 

 (cont. on next page) 

 

Priority Landscape
Total 

Acres

Forested 

Acres

Assessed 

Treatment 

Need 

(Footprint 

acres)

Completed 

Total 

Treatment 

Acres

Footprint 

Acres

Footprint 

Acres -- 

Detected 

Forest 

Structure 

Change

Acres of low-

mixed severity 

wildfire

Ahtanum 120,477   89,217       19,000-29,000 3,949          3,753            1,291            1                            

Asotin 149,152   93,329       Analysis in 2024 11,896       7,154            1,166            36,887                  

Chelan 98,051     31,342       7,500 - 12,500 463             165               14                  266                        

Chewelah 195,408   158,352     59,000 - 80,000 14,281       6,593            5,727            64                          

Chewuch 94,250     83,846       Analysis in 2024 428             206               21                  17,915                  

Chumstick to LP 115,333   84,216       36,500 - 53,000 6,848          3,411            2,202            270                        

Cle Elum 109,396   80,300       22,000 - 35,500 6,940          4,733            931                1,659                    

Deer Park 181,171   90,497       36,000 - 49,000 5,579          3,833            4,980            1,548                    

Dollar 61,238     50,767       18,600 - 27,700 323             277               340                0

Gifford 71,962     39,016       Analysis in 2024 686             458               2,448            468                        

Glenwood 104,501   83,758       23,500 - 32,000 4,582          4,065            4,691            47                          

HWY 97 60,398     37,415       11,000 - 16,500 111             111               6,398            0

Inchelium 146,263   121,779     Analysis in 2024 1,847          1,847            3,426            20,989                  

Ione 44,248     41,784       16,500 - 21,000 1,408          1,240            488                0

Klickitat 149,649   103,274     43,000 - 55,000 1,212          991               7,891            76                          

Little Naches 95,433     92,914       25,500 - 43,000 10,386       4,100            1,381            4,945                    

Little Pend Oreille 92,994     81,148       30,250 - 43,500 9,216          5,697            3,005            58                          

Little White 95,750     84,705       17,750 - 27,500 893             867               1,352            166                        

Long Lake 103,291   41,253       14,000 - 20,000 5,371          4,229            1,969            1,865                    

Loomis 198,991   149,802     Analysis in 2024 20,665       9,285            420                4,342                    

Mad Roaring Mills 65,008     33,325       13,500 - 20,000 5,755          4,181            83                  4,244                    

Manastash Taneum 104,072   65,833       16,500 - 29,500 10,672       5,886            285                78                          

Meadow 60,235     59,050       Analysis in 2024 3,053          2,129            797                0

Methow Valley 338,246   182,937     49,500 - 75,000 25,616       17,073         808                31,161                  

Mica 72,608     39,178       Analysis in 2024 1,813          1,311            1,748            1                            

Mill Creek 186,306   162,060     57,000 - 80,000 31,397       13,450         13,976          212                        

Mission 49,121     32,743       10,406 11,235       3,043            1,054            125                        

Mt Hull 105,431   34,809       12,000 - 18,500 1,262          1,159            1,931            1                            

Mt Spokane 121,767   95,814       29,000 - 42,000 8,573          4,941            6,068            0

Naches-Wenas 180,858   121,981     Analysis in 2024 11,658       9,298            189                12,355                  

Nason Creek 31,679     29,243       6,750 - 11,500 844             415               433                0

Republic 180,553   144,350     46,500 - 64,000 17,482       8,916            3,796            27                          

Slate 35,948     34,905       Analysis in 2024 469             424               130                387                        

Stemilt 38,961     22,613       9,200 - 13,600 3,193          2,259            172                0

Stranger 89,904     72,061       30,000 - 38,000 6,391          3,169            7,946            1                            

Treatments 

Reported 

Completed

Remotely-Detected 

Landscape Condition 

Change (2017 -2022) *



 
 

* Totals for remotely-detected footprint acres and. reported treatment acres have overlap, they are not only additive.  Also, it is expected that the 

values for treatment tracking and remote detection will differ for the following reasons:  remotely-detected acres are always on a one-year delay, they 

may include active management not reported in treatment tracking, they can include partially completed treatments where forest structure change is 

detected, and remote-detection may miss treatments where there was little overstory structure change.  

**Remotely-detected active management footprint acres listed above do not include additional landscape disturbances such as wildfire, 

insect damage, wind damage, etc. 

 

Table 3. Acres of reported forest health treatments completed by Calendar Year (January 2017 – October 31, 2023) 

organized by Treatment Type. 

 

 

Priority Landscape
Total 

Acres

Forested 

Acres

Assessed 

Treatment 

Need 

(Footprint 

acres)

Completed 

Total 

Treatment 

Acres

Footprint 

Acres

Footprint 

Acres -- 

Detected 

Forest 

Structure 

Change

Acres of low-

mixed severity 

wildfire

Teanaway 132,120   111,696     38,500 - 60,000 3,649          3,174            299                18,975                  

Tieton 148,634   117,781     38,000 - 60,500 1,637          1,377            19                  440                        

Tillicum 14,326     11,241       7,614 20,760       5,414            234                52                          

Toroda-Tonata 153,611   117,345     51,000 - 66,000 4,876          2,545            2,232            76                          

Touchet-Mill 203,750   110,794     22,000 - 27,500 2,903          1,447            874                13                          

Trail 105,242   94,948       35,200 - 44,000 4,626          3,478            2,539            8                            

Trout Lake 117,153   105,015     18,500 - 33,000 5,775          4,843            1,775            1                            

Tucannon 98,616     80,099       Analysis in 2024 1,362          931               398                29,481                  

Twisp River 111,918   82,349       26,000 - 36,500 1,760          1,683            165                19,489                  

Upper Swauk 39,175     35,450       14,000 - 22,000 1,553          1,188            295                38                          

Upper Wenatchee 74,777     66,277       15,500 - 27,000 2,789          1,526            331                1,366                    

White Salmon 126,688   104,022     38,000 - 54,000 3,261          2,418            7,779            304                        

Treatments 

Reported 

Completed

Remotely-Detected 

Landscape Condition 

Change (2017 -2022) *

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Grand Total

Commercial Vegetation 15,621       15,924       14,373       15,095       12,994       14,146       9,846         97,999        

Non-Commercial Vegetation 39,065       50,900       48,240       63,934       51,169       69,555       48,011       370,874      

Prescribed Fire 21,122       36,885       27,383       13,786       21,049       10,953       5,810         136,989      

Grand Total 75,808 103,709 89,997 92,815 85,212 94,654 63,667 605,862

EASTERN WASHINGTON TREATMENT ACRES



Table 4. Forest health completed treatment acres by Detailed Treatment Activity Category within broader Treatment Type by Lead Implementing 

Organization by Calendar Year (January 2017 – October 31, 2023). * 

 

Activity Category 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Grand 

Total

Commercial Thin 223          369          592          

Total 223          369          592          

Commercial Thin 1,961      2,151      1,627      824          3,028      715          10,306    

Other - Unknown 163          66            229          

Regeneration Treatment 5,067      6,014      5,403      3,289      6,852      2,926      29,552    

Non-commercial thin 1,335      1,335      

Total 7,191      8,231      7,030      4,113      9,881      4,976      41,422    

Fuels re-arrangement 41            29            42            179          12            303          

Commercial Thin 195          195          

Rx Fire - Pile burning 29            29            

Non-commercial thin 12            12            

Rx Fire - Broadcast Burn 17            17            

Total 41            29            266          207          12            555          

Fuels re-arrangement 2,724      3,175      4,252      5,434      4,577      5,131      5,787      31,079    

Rx Fire - Broadcast Burn 29            4              33            

Total 2,724      3,175      4,252      5,434      4,577      5,160      5,791      31,112    

Commercial Thin 1,567      2,858      1,652      1,401      1,120      2,339      839          11,777    

Fuels re-arrangement 13            35            213          128          224          903          39            1,554      

Herbaceous Veg Control 2,504      2,003      3,336      4,339      3,201      2,469      4,642      22,493    

Non-commercial thin 1,857      6,891      1,553      5,218      4,676      4,484      3,618      28,296    

Other - Unknown 498          21            121          90            279          1,009      

Regeneration Treatment 5,265      4,146      4,000      4,695      4,314      6,818      4,629      33,868    

Rx Fire - Pile burning 842          2,370      2,542      2,245      2,696      623          506          11,824    

Tree establishment 4,360      7,161      1,887      6,941      6,072      3,494      2,236      32,152    

Rx Fire - Broadcast Burn 7              166          237          410          

Total 16,907    25,464    15,203    25,088    22,309    21,387    17,025    143,382  

Other - Unknown 82            97            103          116          121          519          

Fuels re-arrangement 36            36            

Non-commercial thin 9              9              

Total 82            97            103          116          166          563          

Kalispel Tribe of Indians

BLM

Colville Confederated Tribes

Confederated Tribes of the 

Umatilla Indian Reservation

DNR Service Forestry

DNR State Trust Lands



 

 

 

 

Activity Category 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Grand 

Total

Fuels re-arrangement 1,334      1,687      2,147      2,375      1,252      1,142      9,936      

Herbaceous Veg Control 181          761          336          1,344      435          592          3,650      

Non-commercial thin 704          946          1,052      967          659          768          5,095      

Tree establishment 2,066      2,097      2,136      1,686      481          9,021      17,487    

Total 4,285      5,491      5,671      6,372      2,827      11,522    36,168    

Commercial Thin 252          230          482          

Non-commercial thin 79            232          88            78            90            567          

Rx Fire - Broadcast Burn 53            95            107          156          410          

Fuels re-arrangement 123          239          232          430          328          1,353      

Total 331          53            123          471          414          615          804          2,811      

Non-commercial thin 9              20            14            310          156          113          68            690          

Other - Unknown 62            61            1,242      415          565          2,345      

Commercial Thin 35            60            95            

Fuels re-arrangement 135          205          60            13            48            461          

Rx Fire - Broadcast Burn 77            213          290          

Rx Fire - Pile burning 20            20            

Total 71            252          1,461      446          169          595          906          3,900      

Commercial Thin 5,325      4,843      5,935      7,343      4,954      2,121      2,795      33,315    

Fuels re-arrangement 5,797      7,466      8,249      19,579    10,719    25,501    20,620    97,932    

Herbaceous Veg Control 58            50            108          

Non-commercial thin 3,587      5,923      5,961      7,229      5,046      7,581      7,930      43,257    

Other - Unknown 109          37            173          159          2              422          673          1,575      

Regeneration Treatment 960          1,246      838          395          551          482          717          5,188      

Rx Fire - Broadcast Burn 5,164      3,872      6,492      167          4,022      1,582      21,299    

Rx Fire - Pile burning 11,793    14,665    17,178    10,586    13,039    7,574      4,530      79,365    

Tree establishment 5,591      4,975      5,257      1,518      3,570      1,374      824          23,109    

Rx Fire - Planned but 

burned in Wildfire 12,788    9              12,797    

Total 38,384    55,814    50,142    46,977    41,902    46,636    38,089    317,945  

NRCS

Other NGOs

State Parks

USFS



 
     * Terminology crosswalk and glossary is available on DNR’s box folder for this treatment pull. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This summary is a product of DNR Forest Resilience Division.   

Data for this report was analyzed and summarized by Aleksandar Dozic on 10/31/2023. 
 

 

Forest health treatment data available to be shared publicly is available on Forest Resilience Division’s Data 

Viewer, DNR’s Open GIS webpage, and Forest Health Tracker. 

Activity Category 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Grand 

Total

Rx Fire - Broadcast Burn 149          373          148          428          831          1,929      

Rx Fire - Pile burning 400          181          522          1,103      

Fuels re-arrangement 407          374          360          779          1,919      

Commercial Thin 493          572          1,065      

Other - Unknown 26            38            360          425          

Non-commercial thin 801          801          

Herbaceous Veg Control 15            15            

Total 549          779          1,041      1,151      2,530      1,206      7,258      

Tree establishment 10            0              6              0              12            28            

Non-commercial thin 100          17            13            3              13            146          

Fuels re-arrangement 5              4              50            59            

Herbaceous Veg Control 3              3              

Total 115          21            72            3              14            12            236          

Commercial Thin 1,931      1,538      521          394          143          1,426      5,954      

Fuels re-arrangement 85            33            141          258          

Non-commercial thin 381          408          3,584      948          289          239          5,850      

Rx Fire - Broadcast Burn 928          1,236      131          555          164          3,015      

Rx Fire - Pile burning 1,845      1,149      587          29            5              3,616      

Other - Unknown 53            864          917          

Tree establishment 309          309          

Total 5,170      4,331      4,857      1,424      1,128      1,979      1,029      19,918    

Grand Total 75,808   103,709 89,997   91,621   86,405   94,654   63,667   605,862 

WDFW

USFWS

WACC

https://deptofnaturalresources.box.com/s/vo0xblkiqu1rmtjlrt5sbiwsrbpln1k1
https://experience.arcgis.com/experience/4f3323f1a82b418d9dbf16faf32dd9f2
https://experience.arcgis.com/experience/4f3323f1a82b418d9dbf16faf32dd9f2
https://data-wadnr.opendata.arcgis.com/search?groupIds=b5229bc8c2394639882c031bec75118a
https://foresthealthtracker.dnr.wa.gov/


Forest Health Advisory Committee  

Monitoring Work Group  

2021-2022 Tasking Memo 

Specific topics of the Forest Health Advisory Committee may benefit from more focused, small group 

discussions. The purpose of this document is to provide an overview of the objectives, work products, 

and timeline for the FHAC Monitoring Work Group. Any work products, recommendations, or other 

input will be communicated to the full FHAC for approval before being finalized for review by DNR 

leadership. 

Monitoring Work Group Purpose 
The Monitoring Work Group is a standing committee based on language in SB5546 and HB1168 
regarding the design, implementation, and monitoring of the 20-Year Forest Health Strategic Plan: 
Eastern Washington. The work group will provide DNR with input in the implementation of the 20 YP 
monitoring framework (see attached) as well as the interpretation and communication of monitoring 
results over time. Through partner engagement the work group will build a stronger shared 
understanding of the effectiveness of landscape scale forest restoration in eastern Washington and 
help DNR and partners communicate the results to key constituencies. 
 

Workgroup Products and Timeline for 2021 - 2022 

1. (October 2021 – Jan 2022) Review protocol and results of DNR 2021 fire season post-
fire analysis, both planning areas and treatment level. Assist DNR staff in crafting story 
of how treatments affected fire behavior as well as message around 2021 fire season.  

o Provide feedback to DNR on the approach described in the protocol 
o What did we learn from pilot effort? 

o How do we adapt or update the pilot for next fire season?  
o Who else should be engaged? Key partners?  

 

2. (Dec 2021 – Dec 2022) Review, interpret, and provide feedback to DNR staff on change 
monitoring and treatment tracking data for Dec 2022 legislative report as required in 
SB5546. Work with DNR staff to prioritize and implement other regional and planning 
area scale components of 20 YP monitoring framework.  
 

3. (Jan 2022 – Dec 2022) Recommend how, who, and where DNR’s Treatment Level 
Monitoring Protocol can be utilized.   

o 20,000 acres of monitoring across agencies 

o What are going to do with data?  Larger summary & story. Fuels/fire risk, 
were treatment objectives met. 

o Access to data by stakeholders 

 

4. (TBD) Coordination with USFS & other partners. How do we collectively monitor and 
avoid duplication of efforts. 

o USFS-DNR workshop in November 
o Bring in other major landowners, research institutions, etc.  



o Establish technical working group. 
 

Work Group Co-leads 
Derek Churchill, DNR Work Group Lead 
Andrew Spaeth, DNR FHAC Coordinator 
 
DNR is interested in engaging partners in helping co-lead this work group. If you are interested please 
contact Derek Churchill and Andrew Spaeth at derek.churchill@dnr.wa.gov and 
Andrew.spaeth@dnr.wa.gov.  
 

 

 

 

 

mailto:derek.churchill@dnr.wa.gov
mailto:Andrew.spaeth@dnr.wa.gov


DEPARTMENT OF  
NATURAL RESOURCES 

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER 
OF PUBLIC LANDS 
1111 WASHINGTON ST SE 
MAIL STOP 47037 
OLYMPIA, WA 98504-7037 

360-902-1300  
WWW.DNR.WA.GOV 

 
 

To: Terra Rentz, Chair, Forest Health Advisory Committee (FHAC) 

CC: FHAC Committee Members  

From: Jen Watkins, Forest Resilience Division Manager 

Date: May 1, 2023 

Subject: Tasking Memo for Recommendations and Guidance on Western Washington Forest Resilience  

Attachments: N/A 

 
Title:  Western Washington Forest Resilience Workgroup 
 
Task Leaders: Jen Watkins, Forest Resilience Division Manager 
 

1. Overview: Specific topics of the Forest Health Advisory Committee may benefit from more focused, small 
group discussions. The purpose of this document is to provide an overview of the objectives, work products, 
and timeline for the FHAC Western Washington Forest Resilience Work Group. The purpose of this 
document is to provide an overview of the objectives, work products, and timeline for the Work Group. Any 
work products, recommendations, or other input will be communicated to the full FHAC for approval before 
being finalized for review by the Commissioner of Public Lands and the Washington Department of Natural 
Resources (DNR) leadership. 

2. Intent: Published in October 2020, Washington’s 2020 Forest Action Plan provides a comprehensive review 
of forests across all lands — public, private, rural and urban — and offers solutions to conserve, protect and 
enhance the trees and forests that people and wildlife depend on.  The plan set 23 goals and 159 priority 
actions to guide DNR and shared stewardship partner’s work through June 30, 2025.  With the priority actions 
to increase landscape scale resilience, the plan commits to “Work internally across DNR divisions, with the 
Forest Health Advisory Committee, the Timber, Fish, and Wildlife Policy Committee, and other partners to 
lay the scientific, social, cultural, and economic framework for an all-lands forest health and resilience vision 
and approach for western Washington forestlands, building off of existing plans and strategies.” 

The department will reference approach of the all-lands 20-Year Forest Health Strategic Plan for Eastern 
Washington to inform this work, but fully recognizes that the approach and results in Western Washington 
need to be tailored to the unique issues and needs of both the forest ecosystems and forest landowners and 
managers.  The department will also build off of information and lessons learned from the existing DNR Plan 
for Climate Resilience, Forest Action Plan, and the Watershed Resilience Action Plan for the Snohomish 
watershed.   

We request the FHAC’s engagement and recommendations to outline the scientific, social, cultural, and 
economic framework for an all-lands forest health and resilience vision and approach for western Washington 
forestlands.  This includes: 

- Problem Statement: clearly define the issues that need to be addressed in order to create and sustain 
a healthy and resilient forested landscapes in western Washington. This will inform the scope and 
focus of a western Washington forest resilience vision and approach.  

- Socioeconomic and Cultural Context: considerations that will be critical for ensuring the viability 
and durability of our work, including landowner objectives, social values, cultural values, and 
economic realities. 

- Ecological Context and Forest Health Assessments: in partnership with science and technical 

http://www.dnr.wa.gov/


staff, establish a better shared understanding of opportunities for passive and active management that 
integrate diverse resource values and climate change to guide investments and decisions to improve 
forest health and resilience in western Washington, particularly in DNR priority landscapes. 

- Vision:  with the above in mind, recommend an all-lands vision statement for forest health and 
resilience in western Washington. 

- Approach and Outcomes: as DNR and partners expand our shared stewardship work and 
investments in western Washington, make recommendations on how to meaningfully engage partners 
and balance disparate interests, collect ideas about tools and resources that can enable effective 
planning, implementation, and monitoring of future actions on the ground. 

3. Background: Reference the 2020 Forest Action Plan.  Additional reference materials will be provided to the 
workgroup, including the results of a pilot effort underway to explore methodologies for forest health 
assessments in western Washington and the results of initial stakeholder outreach about the risks, 
opportunities, and values around western Washington forests and their health and resilience. 

4. Purpose: To benefit from the expertise and diversity of the FHAC to develop a shared foundational vision 
and approach to all-lands all-hands work to improve forest health and resilience in western Washington. 

5. Task Description: DNR requests a memo documenting the guidance and recommendations of the FHAC on 
the 5 areas identified above:  Problem Statement, Social and Cultural Context, Ecological Context and Forest 
Health Assessment, Vision, and Approach and Outcomes.   

6. Timeline: Final recommendations are requested by the end of December 2023.  We request the workgroup to 
be established and begin meeting in June 2023, and hold 6 monthly meetings.  A presentation of final 
recommendations as well as summary of any proposed next steps to the FHAC at the December meeting with 
a vote to approve.  Submit final recommendations report to DNR.  An effort will be made for at-least one 
monthly meeting to occur in-person with hybrid options. 

7. Assigned to: For consideration by the full FHAC, with specific elements of the task and first draft 
deliverables to be completed by the assigned Work Group. The entire FHAC shall be included in making key 
decisions and approval of final products. 

8. Work Group Composition and Expectations: The Work Group shall be comprised of interested committee 
members and/or representatives from their organization that can bring diverse perspectives, expertise, and 
experience to this topic.  Initial solicitation will occur at the May 2023 meeting; requests to participate are due 
no later than June 1, 2023.  The Work Group shall convene with an introductory meeting before the end of 
June with monthly meetings to follow until December 2023.  The Work Group will have a DNR staff lead and 
will have engagement and support from additional DNR staff.   

9. Products to be generated: A memo providing analysis and recommendations. 

10. Final Disposition: The final product will be provided to the Forest Resilience Division Manager, and will be 
shared internally with Division staff and DNR leadership.  It will be used to guide programmatic work and 
investments, and potentially inform 2024 legislative requests. 

 

Due Date: Memo to FHAC December 1, 2023 and final memo to DNR December 30, 2023 


